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INDEPENDENT STATUTORY AUDITOR'S REPORT

To
The Members of
The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

REPORT OM THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of The Bisra Stone Lime Company Lirnited
(hereinafter referred to “the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31""March, 2024, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the standalone financial
statements, Including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the infarmation required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the sceounting principles
generally accepted In India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') specified under section 133
of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2024, and its profit including other
comprehensive income and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis far Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Indla together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.




Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note No.38.13 in the standalone financial statements, which indicates that the
company has prepared the standalone financial statements based on '‘Going Concern’ assumption. The
company’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by Rs.12057.05 lacs. The company has accumulated
loss and the net worth of the company has been fully eroded. The company has not prepared any future
for survival of the company nor any assurances have been provided from the holding eompany or
ultimate holding company or from the major stake holders to the effect that the company is financially
and operationally supported by them to enable it to operate and settle its liabilities and obligation as and
when they become due to continue as a geing concern. All these events or conditions and other matters
indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year.

Other than the matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section, we have
determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the company for the year ended 31° March 2023 were audited by anather
auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements on 2 June 2023,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Management of the company Is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position and financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementstion and maintepance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
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In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to Boing
concern and using the going concern basis of sccounting unless managsment either intends 1o liguidate
the company or to cease operations, or has na realistic alternative but to do so.

That management of the company is also responsible for overseeing the company’s finandial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butis not a Euarantea
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) will abways detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statéments,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional amissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone finandal statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the




audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concem.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We alzo provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current year and are
therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report bacause the adverse consequences

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Information other than the finandial statements and Auditar’s report thereon (other information)

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Board's Report (including annexure thereto), Management Discussion and Analysis and
Report on Corporate Governance (collectively referred to as ‘other information’) but does not include
the standalone financial statements, and our auditor’s report thereon. The said reports are expected 1o
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we da nat
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure-A" a statement on the matters specified in the paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
standalone financial statements.




b}

d)

e)

f)

gl

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except that its accounting software
did not have the feature of audit trail (edit log) as prescribed in proviso to Rule 3 of the
Companies (Accounts) rules,2014.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of aceount.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

in terms of notification no. GSR 463(E) dated 5 June, 2015, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Central Government of India, Government Companies are exempted from
applicability of the provisions of section 164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, rafar to our separate Report
in "Annexure - B",

In terms of notification no. G5R 463(E) dated 5™ June, 2015, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Central Government of India, Government Companies are exempted from
applicability of the provisions of section 197(16) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included In the Auditor's Report in accordanes with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as on 31* March, 2024
on its financial position in its standalone financial statements — Refer NoteNo.37 in
the standalone financial statements.

18 The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts as
on 31" March, 2024 for which there were any material foreseeable losses that

required to be provided for.

1. There is na occasion of transferring amount to The Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the company.

W.{a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or

share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediarias®), with the

understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in

—




(b}

()

Vi

any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person{s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly ar
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on such audit procedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. Hence, compliance
of provision of section 123 of the Act does not arise.

The present accounting software of the company for maintaining its books of
account did not have the feature of recording audit trall of each and every
transactions, creating an edit log of each change made in books of account along
with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail
cannot be disabled as required under the proviso to Rule 3 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules,2014.Since there was no audit trail maintained for transactions
recorded within the software for the whole year, hence comment on any instance
of audit trail feature being tampered with, does not arise.

3. As required under section 143(5) of the Act, we give in “Annexure C” to this report, our replies
to the directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, action taken thereon and
its financial impact on the accounts and standalone financial statements of the company, which
is based on the information given by the management

Place: Kolkata

Date: 24/09/2024

For S5aha Ganguli & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 302191F)

(€< o

CA. Radharani Saha
Partner

{(Membership No:053010)
UDIN: 240530108KUDBE1902




“Annexure =A”" to the report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
(Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of
our report of even date)

(i) (a} (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B)The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets like
computer software,

(b} The Property, Plant and Equipment and the right of use assets via. Mining Lease have been
physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals in a phased manner so as to
generally cover all the assets once in three years. As informed to us, no material d iscrepancies
have been noticed on such verification,

lc) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasic of our
examination of the records of the company, the title deeds of all the immovabla properties
(other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements ara duly
executed in favour of the lessee) disclased in the standalone financial statemants are held in
the name of the company except in the following cases:

Description of
Property

Gross carrying
value (Rs. in
Lakhs)

Held in Name

Whether
promoter
director or
their relative
or em ployes,

Period held
indicate range,
where
appropriate

Reason for not
being held in
name of the
Company also
indicate if in
dispute

Free hold land
of 16.04 Acres

B.o4

Various sellers

No

Acquired
through sale
deed prior to
1976 and
Company
possession
since 1976

Mutation is
pending.

All Mutation
cases are
pending at
District
Magistrate/
Collactor,
Sundargarh,
Odisha. Due to
fact that sale
deed are
executed prior
to 1976 for
which mutation
cannot be
allowed by
Tahsildar due to
lack of
jurisdiction,




Free hold land includes land of area 8,37 Acres having gross value of Rs 0.46 lakh where the right, title
and possession vest with the Company, however some dispute has been raised by the erstwhile legal
heirs of sellers of such land, which is pending before the different courts.

(d) The company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets)
or intangible assets or both during the year.

{e) According to the information given to ue, ne proceedings have been initiated or are pending
ogainst the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1388) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management during the year and, in our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification
by the management is appropriate. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of
Inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventory and have been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no working capital limits has been
sanctioned to the company during the year.

(&) The company during the year has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or
granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, the reporting under clauses
a(iif)(a).(b).(e).(d).(e) and (flof the Order are not applicable ta the company.

() The company has not granted any loans or made any investment or given any guarantee and security
covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Act.

() The company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits during the
year within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act, and the
rules made thereunder.

[¥)We are informed that the Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost records under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the company.

(Wi} (a) The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Goods
and Services Tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other Statutory Dues to the
appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no
undisputed statutory dues in arrear as at 31st March,2024 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable except for the following:




(wiig)

5l Amount
No. Nature of dues Status Involved
(in Lakhs)

1 | service Tax Finance Act 1994 5.37
2 Income Tax Income Tax Act 6.30
3 | provident Fund Employees Provident Fund Act 8.43
4 | Good and Service Tax Good and Service Tax Act 11.14
5 Demand against wildlife conservation plan Divisional Forest Officer, Rourkela 550.30
6 Provision for Geological Survey Dy. Director of Mines, Rourkela 31,76
7| Recovery of Compensation for excess Mining__| Dy. Director of Mines, Rourkela 807.96
8 | Liability General (Wild Life Conservation plan) | Divisional Forest Officer, Rourkela 5.57
9 | Suspense General (Professional Tax) Govt. Of Odisha 0.05
Total 1426.88

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory due referred

in sub-clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account
of any dispute except for the following:

sl Period to
No. which Amount
amount Forum where dispute is Invalved (in

Nature of dues relates pending Lakhs)
1 Cantral Salae Tax Act 1956 1980.90 Lales Tax Tribunal 1,45
2 Orissa Sales Tax Act 1966 1552-99 sTT 0.49
3 Orissa Sales Tax Act 1966 1990-91 STT 1.44
4 QOrissa Entry Tax Act 2001-02 51T 0.97
5 Orissa Entry Tax Act 2002-03 5TT 2.57
& Orissa Entry Tax Act 2003-04 STT 1.02
7 Orissa Value Added Tax Act 2004 | 2005-06 JCCTA) 14.87
3 Central Sales Tax Act 1956 201214 51T 1.72
9 | Central Sales Tax Act 1956 2014-15 ICCT(A) 1.87
10 2013-14 Sub-Divisional Magistrate,

Stamp duty Claim Sundargarh 2056.00
11 | Provident Fund Claim 2003-10 RPFC 253.39
12 | Demand against illegal and excess | 2001-11 Dy. Director of Mines,

Claim Rourkela 3281.68

Total 5624.47

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions in the books of
sccount that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 that has not been recorded in the books of account.




(ix)

The company has not taken loan or raised fund or borrowed money from any one during the year
except from its holding company in earlier year. The default in repayment and In the payment of
interest thereon is stated below:

Matura of Name of [ Amount not | Whether No. of days Remarks
borrowing, lender paid on due | principal or | Delay or
including debt date interest unpaid
securities (Rs. In Lakhs)
Eastern Na repayment has
Investme been made since
nts Ltd. starting of the
Term Loan (EIL) 2553.69 Both Since amount due for
Halding Apr 2013 repayment
Co. including interest.

(x}) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt

instrument), preferential allatment ar private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year.

() (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud

by the company or on the company has been noticed or reported during the year.

{b) No case or report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors In
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the

Central Government;

(c} According to the information and explanations given to us the whistle-blower policy implementation
thereof is yet to be formalised. However, we are informed that there is no whistle-blower complaints
received by the company during the year.

(xii) The company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) (a), (b) & [c)of the Order is not

applicable.

(dil) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of the Act where applicable and details have been disclosed in the Ind AS standalone financial

statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standard,

[xiv) (a) The internal audit system of the company Iz not commensurate with the size and nature of its

business;

(b) The only report of the Internal Auditor for the year 2023-24 dated 08.04.2024 was considered

by us.




{xv) The company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with
its directors, as covered under Section 192 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is
nat applicable ta the company.

{xvi} The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934, Accordingly, the reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b), (c) and (d) of the Order are not applicable
to the company.

{wvii) The company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as in the immediataly
preceding financial year,

(#viii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the company during the year.

{xix} Review of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities and other information viz. the net worth of the company has been fully
eroded, company’s current liabilities far exceeded its total assets, no future plan for survival of the
company has been prepared, no financial or operational assurances support have been recelved by the
company from its major stakeholders, all these events &conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exits that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

However, as the company is a Government Company, we are unable to state whether the company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

{xx) The provisions of Sec.135 of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) has been
applicable to the company. However, we are informed that pending the formation of CSR Committes of
the board, the provisions of the CSR have not yet been implemented or complied with.

For Saha Ganguli & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Partner
Place: Kolkata Sl (Membership No: 053010)
Date- 24/00/2024 UDIN: 24053010BKUDBELS02




“Annexure —B™ to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Standalone Fin ancial
Statements of The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financlal Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial contrals over financial re porting of the company as of 31st March,
2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the com pany for the year
ended on that date,

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The company’s management is responsible for establiching and malntaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the arderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidanca Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note®) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controlke over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls system over finandial reporting and their cperating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting Included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.




We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting Is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of finandal
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are baing
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company: and (3)
provide reascnable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of intarnal financial contrale over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error of fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, except for the internal audit system which is required to be improved to commensurate
with the size and nature of its business, the company has in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial contrals system over financial reporting and such internal financlal controls ever financial
reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Saha Gangull & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No: 302191F)

<o

/

! CA. Radharani Saha

U, Partner
Place: Kolkata (Membership No: 053010)
Date: 24/09/2024 UDIN: 24053010BKUDBE1902



“ANNEXURE - C* to the Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

(Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Re

the financial yaar 2033

s to the Directions 0 tatu Audi under Section hi

sk Query
1 | Whether the company has system in place to pracess all the

accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions outside
IT system on the Integrity of the accounts along with the
financlal implications, if any, may be stated.

Reply

The company has a system in
place to process all the
accounting transactions
through different IT Systems
and thereafter compiled the
same manually for preparation
of standalone financial
statements. However, the
activities as detailed below
which may have implication of
the processing of accounting
transactions outside IT System:

As explained to us, there are
operations/transactions which
take place outside the system.

For instance, the accounting
transactions flow from the EDp
department of the Company
which maintains data for
Payroll and stores department
for stores operations are not
linked with the software where
regular books of accounts are
maintained, All the aforesaid
transactions are then manually
entered in the software which
maintains regular books of
account.

There are chances of some
aforesaid transactions bl.'ing
missed to be accounted as the

Now nfu::wntlr_ritrmsar.unns




are not automated at the point
of generation of transaction.
The financial Implications of
those transactions outside the
IT system are unascertainable,

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/finterest ete. made
by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? IF yes, the financial impact may be stated,
Whether such cases are properly accounted for? {In case,
lender is a government company, then this direction is also
applicable for statutory auditor of lender company).

Based on our examination of
relevant records of the
company and the information
and explanations received from
the Management, there were
no cases of restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of any
waiver/write off of
debtsfloans/interest etc. by
any of the lenders of the
company due to the company's
inability to repay the loan
accrued during the financial
year 2023-24,

Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) recelved/ receivable for
specific schemes from Central/State Government or its
agencies were properly accounted for/utilized as perits term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation,

Based on our examination of
relevant records of the
company and the information
and explanations received from
the Management, no Funds for
specific schemes from
central/state agencies have
been recelved/recelvable by

Place: Kolkata
Date: 24/09/2024

the company during the
financial year 2023-24.
For Saha Ganguli & Assoclates

Chartered Accountants
{Firm Registration No: 302191F)

i< a

CA. Radharani Saha
Partner

(Membership No: 053010)
UDIN: 24053010BKUDBE1902




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
CIM: L141000R1D10C0I033004
Balance Sheot as at March 31, 2024

(B3 bm Lokhs) |
% No. Particulasrs Nete No.| As st 31.03,2034 | As st 31.03,2023
A |ASSETS
{1} | Noa-Ccurrant assals
(&) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 6.1 598.83 5B6.TE
(b) Other Intangible Assels 7 0.00 0.00
{c] Investmant Properties - -
(¢} Financisl Assols
(i) Investments b 1] 0.05
{1iy Trade Recelvables
(Uil Loans
{Iv; Dthes Financial Agsets ] 911.58 211,22
(2] Deferred tax assets (net) o 417.13 394,45
(1] Other Norn-Codranl Assets ii 0.4%9 LER]
1. Total Non- Current Assets 1938.03 1,977.48
[2) |Currant sssets
{a] Inventlores 12 381,94 512.12
{b) Financial Assats
(i} Investments
{ii} Trade Recelvahle 13 A6 00 TRRED
(H° Canty and Canh Bguivstents 14 360,33 #1332
(i Bank balances ather than [§ii) above - -
{v) Other Financial Asseta k] 310,40 7411
(e} Cwrent Tax Asscls [Met) 10 159.0% 29880
{d] Other Current Assets 15 1780, 28 148%. 20
(&) Asset held for sale 16 - -
2. Yotal current assots 3,807.69 3,480.23 |
TOTAL ASSETS (1432) = 5,735.72 542771
b |EQUITY AND LIARTLITIES
(1) |Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 17 073063 A7I8.83
(k) Other Equity 18 (21,673.22) (21,849.87)
1. Total Equity (12,944.54) (13,121.24)
Limbdlities
{2) |Man—Current Liabilites
(a) Finansial liahitios
(i) Barrcwings 19 - -
(i) Trade payables
(1l Other Financlal Liabilitias
(B} Previsions Z0 BH7.54 1048.61
{e) DeMarsd Tan Liabitities (Met)
{d) Othar Nen-Current Linbilities
2, Total Mon-Current Liabilities BAT.54 1,048.01
{F) | Currant Liabilitss
(@) Financial linbilities
(1) Borrewings 19 1,500.00 1500.00
(i) Trade payablas
(@) Totsl outstanding dues of micro anterprises
and small entreprises F 1] 38.72 =
{b) Total outstanding dues of creditors othar
than micre entreprises and small anterprisss 1,508.47 366.00
(1 Other financial labilities 1 6,893.27 6709.91
(b} Other Current Liabilities I &.BE4.08 &£730.50
(€] Provisions 20 09427 2184.85
{d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)
3. Total current lisbilities 17, 79277 17, 500.34
Total llabiiities 18,680,31 18,548.95
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (1+2+3) C__ 573872 5427.71
The sccompanyl i srm_an intearsl part of the Y s AE:

For & On Bahall of Board of Directors

o

Ag par our Report of aven date attached.

For Saha Gangull & (A K. Bagoil}
Chartered Accountants HMansging O
Firm Registration No.: 30 ' l/
Radharanl Saha "
Pariner [ PinTu Blewal) (Pusp rhkar)
Membership No.: 053010 ﬁrv-:ﬂf: i Conipany Becratany Chiaf Financial
4 -

Date:2 il Oificar



The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
CIN: L141000R1910GOT033904
Btatement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Rs. in Laichs) |
For the year
8 No.| Particulars Nats Na. wnnel el For the ypeas ssded
31.03.202% 51.03.2023
T [Revenus from cperations 4 BAGE. 9T B&19.1T
I |Other income 25 64.33 53151
I |Total insome I + II) 853120 BET1.E8
IV |EXrENaBs
{s] Changes in Inventories of finished goods 26 147.06 [143.94)
{b] Comtroctunl Expenses ar ITATAT 3,118.21
{e] Haoyalty 28 116810 121676
4] Employse benellt exponsa 9 1964.94 1890.60
(e} Fimance costs 30 7. 77T BA.45
Il Depreciation and smortistlon sxpenss a a8.89 ar.79
ig) Other expenses a3z 211“& 1262.57
Total expenses [TV B29H 66 T465.44
V |Profit [ (loss) bofors sxoeptiona] (tems snd tax (I - 1V) 232.65 1207.24
Exceptional Items /|
V1 |Profit [ [Loss) after exceptional tems 192.68 120724
VII |Profit / [loss) bufore tux 232.65 1207.24
VI Tax enpenscs
(i} Currest Tax as.a3 210,93
Deferred Tax (Mat Credit) (an.As) [210,%3)
Net Current Tex - -
(i} Ineome Tax for Earllor Years [Wet) 3.52 2a.73
Total tax expanss [VIII) a.52 33.72
Profit [ (loss) for the year from continoing oparstions [VII - 229.13 1,173.52
X _|Prafit [ [loss] from discoatinued epurstions . .
X |Profit { (loss) for the year/period [IX+X]} 229.13 1,173 B3
Xl |Other comprehensive income
A} Tewms that will aot be reclassified to profit or loss
+ Remsas famen
i t guins [ (losses] on defined benefit 163.58) (224.31)
* Others (specify nature) - -
Income tax relat Itama tha
’]rldl.l:lbﬁlhwi:::ﬂhﬂ ¢ lnet b 4310 39.19
Total other comprohonsive income [XIT) |52.48) {185.13)
mwmmmhmmm+m 176.65 QAR 40
HIV | Baialiigs por equity share:
[1] Basic Barning Per Bhore [Rs.) 33 0.26 1.54
(2] Diluted Earning Por Share (s 0.36 1,54
mamp-qlq.m_]. o a_a:_hm an integral part of these financial statoments
Ad per our Report of even date attached. For & On Bebalf of Board of Directors

.

| \ ¢
Nl b
Company Becretary Chiel Finmncin Oficer




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
CIN: L141000R1910G01033904
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Partlculars For the year ended | For the year ended
31.03.2024 31.03,2023
A.|Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax for the year 231.65 1,207.25
Adjustmaents for:
Interest Income recognised in profit or loss - {50.78)
Interest Expenses - 83.45
Provision for investment 0.05 .
Depreciation and amortisation of non-current assots 38.89 37.79
171.59 1,377.70
Movements in working capital:
(Increase) / decrease in inventories 150.19 {148.17)
(Increase) / decrease in frade receivables (38.46) (163.11)
(Increase) / decrease in bank balances other than Cash & cash equivale] - -
(Increase) / decrease in loans, other financial asset and other assets 69.29 (563.73)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables 1,175.19 17.06
:nrzrvﬂn / [decrease) in other financial liabilities, other liabilities and (1,146.23) (129.91)
Cash (used in) / generated from aperations 481.56 289.84
Less; Income taxes paid i61.561 230.97
Net cash (used in) / generated by operating activities 319.95 58.87
B.|Cash Mows from investing activities
Interest received from banks and - 50.78
Purchase of fixed assats (50.94) {2.16)
Procoeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment = -
Met cach generated by investing activities (50.94) 48.62
C.|Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of interest on borrowings - -
Interest Exponses (B3.45)
Repayment of Borrowing =
Net cash (used in) financing activities - (83.45)
Net increase or (decrease) in cash or cash equivalents 269.01 24.02
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 91.32 67.30
Cash and eash equivalents al the end of the year/Period 3560.33 91.32

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Note:
@) Cash and cash equivalent under current financial asset at note no.14 are cash and cash equivalent for the purpose
of drawing cash flow statement. Therefore reconciliation statement reguired under para 45 of Ind AS 7 Is not require
b) Figures in the brackets are cash outflow/ Income as the case may be.

As per our Report of aven date attached,
ﬂ‘q‘:. o

{ A.K.Bagchi )

For Saha Ganguli & Associates
v Managing Director

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 302 34

(2<.0

CA Radharani Saha
Partner :
Membership No.: 053010

Kolkata , Date:24th Septembar et

Sarkar)
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

R
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4.1 Basis of
preparation and
presentation

THE BISRA STONE LIME COMPANY LIMITED
Ind AS Material Accounting Policies

The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited |hereinafier referred as “BSLC™ or
*Company”) was incorporated on 1st day of October, 1910, It was nationalized by
the Gavernment of India by virtue of the Bird and Company Limited. It was
acquired under the Acquisition and Transfer of Undertaking and other Properties
Act, 1980 and it became a Schedule-C PSU w.e.[ 10th March, 2010,

It is & subsidiary Company of Eastern Investments Limited (EIL) whick became a
subsidiary of RINL (Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited) on 5th January, 2011, The
company is listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange.

The main activities of the company are mining and marketing of limestone and
dolomite. The mines are located at Birmitrapur in the district of Sundargarh,
Odisha.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, issued notifications dated
24th March, 2021 to amend Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013 to enhance
the disclosures required t be made by the Company in its Financial Statement.
Above mentioned amendments shall come into force w.e.f, O1st day of April 2021.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified
under the Companies Act (Indian Accounting Standards] Rules, 2015,

Upto the year ended 31 March, 2015, the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP. which
inciudes Standards notified under the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules,
2006. These arc the Compuny's first Ind AS financial statements. The date of
trankition to lod AS s ] .p';]-.:riil 2015,

The financial siatements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Indian Accounting Standards
{ind A5 prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

Prior to adoption of Ind AS, the Company had been preparing its financial
statements for all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2016, in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the India, including
accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013,
read with Rule 7 of the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014 “Indian GAAPT),
These financial statements for year ended 31 March 2017 are the Company's first
financial statements prepared in accordanee with Ind ASs.

All assets and habilities have been classified as current or noncurrent as per
Company’s operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule-11l of the
Companies Act 2013, Based on the nature of business, the Company has
ascertained its operating cycle ag 12 months for the purpose of Current
noncurrent classifientlon of assets and liabilities.

The Company has adopted all the issued Ind ASs and such adoption was carried
out in accordance with Ind A8 101 - Pirst Time Adoption of Indian Accounting

Ind AS Maderial Accounting Policies
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

The Company has adopted all the issued Ind ASs and such adoption was carried
out in accordance with Ind AS 101 — First Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards. The Company has transited from Indian GAAP which is its previous
GAAP, as defined in Ind AS 101,

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liahility in an orderly transaction betweern market participants at  the
measuregment date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a hability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or hability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and,/ or disclosures in these financial statements 18 determined
on such a basls, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind
AS 116 - Leases and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value In Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value
in use in Ind AS 36 = Impairment of Assels.

In addition, lor [inancial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categoriged into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degreée to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs (o the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
ldentical asscts or labilities that the Company can access at the
measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level
1, that are observable for the asset or hability, either direetly or indirectly;
and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

The principal accountlng policles are set out below,

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production or/ and supply of
gonds or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet
at eoal, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subseguent
accumulated impairment losses.

Initial Measurement

The initial cost at cash price equivalent of property, plant and cquipment
eoquired comprises its purchase price; including import dulies  and non-
refundable purchase taxes, any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets
to its working condition and location and present value of any asset restoration
obligation or obligatory decommisgioning costs for its intended use.

Ind AS Material Accounting Policies




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

Expenditure incurred on development of freehold land is capitalized as part of the
cost of the land.

In case of self-constructed assets, cost includes the costs of all materals used in
construction, direct  labour, allocation of overheads, directly attributable
bormowing costs,

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on day- to- day servicing of an item of property, plant
and equipment is recognised in profit or loss a5 incurred. However, expenditure
on major maintenance or repairs including cost of replacing the parts of asaets
and overhaul costs where it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will be available to the Company, are capitalised and the carrying
amaunt of the iterm so replaced is derecognised,

Insurance spires that are specific to a fixed asset and valuing more than * 1 lakh
per unit is capitalized along with the main assets. All other spares are recognised
as inventory, except for spares which are having a useful life greater than a year
and can 1o be identified as components in an asset are capitalised.

Capital work-in-progress

Assets in the course of construction for production or/and supply of goods or
services or administrative purposes; or for purposes not yet determined, are
included under capital work in progress and are carmied at cost, less any
recognised impairment logs. Cost includes professional fees and for qualifying
asgel, borrowings costs capitaligecd in accordance with the Company's s
accounting policy, Such ecapital work in progress, is transferred to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when completed or stars
pperating as per management's intended use,

Coats associated with the commissioning of an asset nre capitalized where the
asset is available for use but incapable of operating at normal levels until a
period of commissioning has been completed,

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets are provided over their estimated uselul lives or, in the
case of leased assets (including leasehold improvermnents), over the lease term if
ghorter. The lease period is considered by excluding any lease renewals options,
unless the renewals are reasonably certain. Depreciation on assets are provided
on & straight line basis over the useful life of the asset in the manner prescribed
under Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 except for the {ollowing categones
of assets based on management's estimation:

(a) Phato copiers and fax machines, Telecom equipment- 3 vears

(13} Audio and visual squipment- 10 yeare

(¢} Other office equipment, Earth moving eguipment, Forklift, Trucks, Air
conditioners, refrigerators, water coolers, air coolers and freezers- 7 years

(d) Safety equipment and light motor vehicles- 8 vears

The estimated useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each vear end,
with the ellect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospecuve basis,
Each component of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that i1s
Materizl in relation to the total cost of that ltem (8 depreciated separately if its

Ind AS Material-Accounling Policies
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

usaful life differs fromm the others components of the asset.

Property, plant and eguipment which are sulbject to componentization, compriscs
of main assets, componentized assets and remainders, if any. The useful hfe of
remainders carries the life of main assets unless the same based on technical
evaluation is considered to be lower than that of the main asset, in which case,
such lower useful life is considered.

The residual value of property, plant and equipment are maintained at 5% of the
onginal cost except for assets costing up to Rs. 5,000 which are fully depreciated
In the vear of capitalization.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is
prospectively depreciated over the revised useful life of respective assets.
The estimated range of useful lives are as follows:

Years

Buildings a0 - 6D

Plant and machinery B- 15

Electric Machinery & Plant and General Electrification 10

Railway Siding 15

Fipelines 15

Motor Vehicles 5

Furniture and fixtures 10

Water Supply and Sewerage System 5-12

Freehold land is not depreciated

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
Depreciated assets on property, plant and equipment and accumulated
depreciation thereon are retained fully until they are derecognized or classified as

noan-current asscts held for sale

Disposal of assets

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benelits are expected to arise from the cvontinued use of the
asset. Any pain or loss arising on the disposal or retirememt of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net
disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset and is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss,

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all its property, plant and equipment recognized as of 1 April, 2015
{lransition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrving value
as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Investment properties are properties held to earmm rentals and/ or for capital
appraciation  (Including property under construction fer such purposcs).
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured in
accordance with Ind AS 16's requirements for cost model, ather than those that
meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale (or are included in a disposal
group that iz classified as held for sale) in accordance with Ind AS 105,

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no futtire econamic benelits are
expected from the disposul. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the

IndAS Material Accounting Policies
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Assels

|
| 4.4A Impairment

carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the perimi in which

| the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets acquired are reported at cost less accumulated amortization

and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets having finite useful life
are amortised over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Mining Rights

The costs of mining rights include amounts paid for afforestation and wild life
conservation az determined by the regulatory authorities are capitalised as
“Mining rights” in the year in which they are incurred. Cost of pre-production
primary development expenditure other than land, buildings, plant and
equipment are capitalised as part of the cost of the mining property until the
mining property is capable of commercial production. Capitalised mining
properties are amortised on a unit-of-production basis over the totz]l estimated
remaining commercial reserves of mining property and are subject to

impairment review.

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benecfits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the asset are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation
The estimated useful lives for the main categories of intangibles assets having
finite useful life are as follows:
{a) Acquired computer software are classified as intangible assets and
carries a usciul life of 4 years.

(b) Mining Rights comprising of NPV and related payments made to
government authorities for limestone and dolomite mines are amortized
over the period of lease from the date of payment or date of rencwal/
deemed renewal of mining lease whichever is earlier,

Deemed cost on transition to Ind AS

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all its intangible assets recognized as of 1 April, 2015 (transition date)
measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carryving value as its deemed
cost as of the transition date.

Impairment of tangible and intangible agsets

Al the end of each reporting periad, the Company reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. If any such indication

exista, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit o which the assel belongs,

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted




4.5 Provisions
anl
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

Iy assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset jor cash-generating unit) is estimated to be
less than its carrving amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss s
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset [or cash-generating unit] is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior vears. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and
loss,

Provisions

Frovisions are recognisedd when there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive] as a result of a past event and it is probable (“more likely than not®)
that it is required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheer date, taking into
account the risks and unecertainbes surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the estimated cash flows to settle the present
obligation, its carrving amount is the present value of those cash flows. The
discount rate used is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money in that jurisdiction and the nisks specific to the liability.

(a] Restoration, rehabilitation and decommissioning

An obligation to incur restoration, rehabilitation and environmental costs
ariges when environmental disturbanee is caused by the development or
angoing production of a mine and other manufacturing facilities. Such
costs, discounted to net present wvalue, are provided for and a
corresponding amount is capitalised at the start of each project, as scon
as the ohligation te incur such costs arises. These costs are charged to
the statement of profit or loss over the life of the operation through the
depreciation of the asset and the unwinding of the discount on the
provision. The cost estimates are reviewed periodically and are adjusted
to reflect known developments which may have an impact an the cost
extimates or life of operations:. The cost of the related assetl is adjusted
for changes in the provision due to factors such as updated cost
estimates, changes to lives of operations, new disturbance and revisiong
to discount rates. The adjusted cost of the msset is depreciated
prospectively over the lives of the assets to which they relate. The
unwinding of the discount is shown as finance and other cost in the
statements of profit or loss.

(b) Environmental liabilities
Environment labilities are recognised when the Company becomes
obliged, legally or constructively to rectify environmental damage or
pertorm remediation work.

IndAS Material Accounding Policies
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

{e) Litigation
Provision ia recogniscd once it has becn eatablished that the Company
has a present obligation based on consideration of the information which
becomes available up w the date on which the Ctﬂuprln}"h financial
statements are finalized and may in some cases entail seeking expert
advice In making the determination on whether there is a present
abligntion

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liahilities arising from past events the existence of which would be
confirmed only on occurrelice or non-occurrence of ane or more future uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Company or contingent liabilities
where there is a present obligation but it is not probable that economic benefits
would be required to settle the obligations are disclosed in the fAnancial
gtatements unless the posaibility of any cutflow in settlement 18 remote.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assels are possible assets that arise from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future cvents not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent
assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefit
is probahle on the basis of judgment of management. These arc reviewed at each
balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when infllow of
economic benefit is probable.

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116,
Leases. ITnd AS 116 has become effective w.e.f. 1 April 2019, which eliminates the
classification of leases as either finance or operating lease as reguired by Ind AS
17, Leases. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lesser accounting model and requires
a leasee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than
12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Company would be
recognizing a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability in its balance
sheet. Apart from the balance sheet, statement of profit & loss of a company
would also undergo a change as operating lease expenses will be bifurcated into
depreciation on the right-of-use asset and interest expense on the lease linbility.
The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract, 1.e. the lessee
and the lessor. Ind AS 116 substantally carries forward the lessor accounting
requirernents in Ind AS 17,
The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual period beginning on or
after April 1, 2019, The standard permits two possible methods of transition:
¢ Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior perind presented
applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Pollcies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors.
* Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of

initially applying the Standard recognized at the date of initlal application,
Under mocdified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as

the present value of the remaining lease pavments, discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate and the right of use asset cither as:

» [is carrying amount as if the stendard had been applied since the

Ind AS Materiad Accounting Policiey
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commencement of the date, but discounted at lessee’s inecremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application or
* An amount equal to the lease linbility. adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease pavments related to that lease recognized under
Ind AS 17 immediately before the date of initial application.
Certain practical expedients arc available under both the methods,
On completion of evaluation of the effect of adoption of Ind AS 116, the company
is proposing to us the ‘Modified Retrospective Approach’ for transitioning to Ind
AS 116, and take the cumulative adjustment to retained earnings, on the date of
initial application [April 1, 2019). Accordingly, comparatives for the year ending
or ended March 31, 2019 will not be retrospectively adjusted. The company has
elected certain available practical expedients on transition.

Applicability of Ind AS 1 16:

This standard applies to all leases, including leases of right-of-use assets in a
sublease, except for:

(a) Leases to explore for or use minerals, oil, natural gas, and similar non-
regenerative resources;

(b} Leases of biological assets within the scope of Ind AS 41, Agriculture,
held by a lessee

{c] Service concession arrangements within the scope of Appendix D,
Service Concession Arrangements, of Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with
Customer

{d) Licenses of intellectual property granted by a lessor within the scope of
Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Rights held by a lessee under licensing agreements within the scope of
Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets, for such items as motion picture films, video
recordings, plays, manuscripts, patents and copyrights

Identifyving a lease:
Below conditions need to be fulfilled if the contract iz to be classified as leage:

Identified asset.
Lessee obtains substantially all of the economic benefits.
Lesser directs the use.

Inventories of finished goods, semi-finished goods and work in process are valued
at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is generally determined at moving
weighted average price of materials on real time basis, appropriate share of
labour and related overheads, Net realizable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business leas eatimated cost necessary o make the
sale.

Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection ia expected to be

collected within a period of 12 months or less from the reporting date (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business il longer), they are classified as eurrent
asscts olherwise as non-current assers.

Trade receivables are measured at their transaction price unless it contains a
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Material financing component in accordance with Ind AS 18 (or when the entity
applies the practical expedient) or pricing adjustments embedded in the contract,

Loss allowance for expected life time credit loss is recognised on nitial
recogniton,

All linancml assets are recognised on irede date when the purchase of a linancial
asset is under a contract whose term requires delivery of the financial asset
within the timeframe established by the market concerned, Financial assets are
initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial
assets which are classified as at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) at
inception. All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their
entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,

Classification of financial assets

Financial assets are classified as ‘eguity instrument’ if it is a non-derivative and
meets the definition of ‘eguity’ for the issuer (under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instruments; Preserdation). All other non-derivative financial assets are ‘dein
instruments.

Finanecial assets at amortised cost and the effective interest method

Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost i both of the following
conditions are met:

= the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates 1o
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding,

Debt instruments meeting these critena are measured initially at fair value plus
trunsaction costs, They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
cifective interest method less any impairment, with interest recognised on an
effective vield basis in investment income.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Deht instruments are measured at FYTOCH if both of the following conditions are
mel:

»  the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows and selling assets; and

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to
cash Mows that are solely payvments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding s

Debt instruments meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus
transaction costs. They are subsequently measured at fair value with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive ncome,
except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains or losses.
Interest ealeulated using the effective interest method is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income. When the debt instrument is
derecognised the cumulative gain or loss previously recognigsed in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to the statement of preofit and loss account
an a reclassification acjuatment
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Al Initial recognition, an urevocable election is made (on an instrument-hby-
instrument basis| to designate investments in equity instruments other than held
for trading purpose at FVTOCI,

A linancial assel is held for troding if;

+ |t has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near
Lermm; or

=  on initial recogniten it (s part of a portfelio of identified financial
instruments that the Company manages logether and lhas evidence of a
recent actual pattern of shori-term proft-taking; or

« it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument or a financlal guarantee.
Investments in equity imstruments at FVTOCT are initially measured at fair value
plus transaction costs, Subsequently, they are measured atl fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment’s revaluation reserve. Where the

assel is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumutated in the
investment's revaluation reserve is directly reclassified to retained earnings.

For eguilv mstruments measured at far value through other comprehensive
income no impairments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in investment income when the Company's right to
receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity: and the amount of the
dividend can be measured relinbly.

Other Financial Assets (Contract Assets)

Accounts Receivables is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
gservices, transferred to the Customer. It the Company performs by transferring
the goods or aervicea to a Customer before the Customer paya consideration or
payment 18 due, Accounts Receivables (in the nature of Contract Asset] is
recogniged for the Earmed Consideration that is conditional.

Financial assets at FVTFL

Financial asseis that do not meet the criteria of classifying as amortised cost or
fair value thirough other comprehensive income described above, or that meet Lthe
eriteria but the entity has chosen to designate as at FYTPL at initial recognition,
are measured at FVTPL.

Investments 0 equity  instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the
Company designates an investment that is not held for (rading at FVTOCI at
initial recognition

Financial assets classified at FVTPL arve initially measured ai fair value excluding
transaction costs.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any
gning o losses ansing on remeasurement recognised in the statement of profit

Ind AS Material Accounting Policies




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

and losg, The ret gain or loss recognised in the statement of profic and loss is
included in the ‘'other gains and losses' line item,

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL is included in the net gain or lpss
described above

Dividend income on investments in equity instruments at FVTPL is recognised in
the statement of profit and loss in investment income when the Company’s right
to receive the dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity; and the amount of the
dividlend can be measured reliably

Trade recelvables, loans and other receivables are classified as subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Trade and other receivables which does not contain
any Material fnancing component are stated at their transaction value as
reduced by impairment losses, if any.

Loans and other recelvables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised
bw applying the effective interest rate (EIR] method.

Impairment of financial asscts

On initial recogmition of the financial assets, a loss allowance for expected credit
loss is recognised for debt instruments at amortised cost and FVTOCL Far debt
instruments that are measured at FYTOCI, the loss allowance is recognised in
other comprehensive income in the statement of profit and loss and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the balance sheet.

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument Is measured in g wuy Lhat
reflects;

* an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that s determined by
evalusting A mnge of possible cutcomes;

the time value of money; and

reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue
cost or effort at the reporting date aboul past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions,

At each reporting date, the Company assess whether the eredit risk on a financial
instrument has increased Malenally since nitial recognition.

When making the assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default
occurrinng on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial Instrument as at the date of Initial recognition
and consider reasonable and supportable information, that is available without
undue cost or effory, that is indicative of Maternal increases in credit nisk since
mitial recognition.

If. at the reporting date, the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased Materially since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss

allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. If, the credit risk on that financal instrument has
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increased Materially sinee initial recognition: the Company measures the l0ss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses

The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the
loss allowance al the reporting date is recognised as an impairment gain or loss
in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial asset:

The Company derecognizes a financial asset on trude date only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to mnother entity. If the Company neither translers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred assel, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated linbility for amounts il may have to pay. If the Company retains
substantally all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also
revognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derceognition of 4 financial asset other than in ita entirety (e.g. when the
Company retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the
Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between
the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it
no longer recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts an the
date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in aceordance with the substance of the conlractual arrangement,

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of dirset igsue costs

Financial liabilities

Financial Habilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL' or ‘other
tinancial halihities

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
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Financial liabilities are classified as at FYTPL when the financial liabality is either
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

+ it has been acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

+  on initlal recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Company manages together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

+ It iz a derivative that is not designated and eflective as a hedging
Instrument.

A financial Hability other than a f{inancial liability held for trading may also be
designated as at FVTPL upen initial recognition if:

«  gsuch designation eliminates or materially reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise anse; or

« the financial liability forms part of a group of financial assets or financial
liabllities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on
@ falr value basis, in accordance with the Company'a documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
{s provided internally on that basis; or

« It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives,
and Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments permits the entire combined
contract to be designated.as at FVTPL.

Financial Habilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recogrised in the statement of profit and loss, excepl
for the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that lability which is recognised in
other comprehensive income,

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss mcorporates
any interest paid on the financial liability,

Other financial liabilities
Other financial Habilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair
value, net of ransaction costs,

Other financial linbilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective vield
basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allognting intorost oxpones over the relevant periad. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

payments through the expected life of the financial Lability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Trade and orher pavables are recognised ar their fransachon cost, which is its
lair value, and subsequently measurod st amortised cost

Offsctting financial instruments
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reporied m the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an inlention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforveable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course ol
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term
deposits wilhh a maturity of three months or less,

Borrowing coats directly attributable to the agquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. The
Company considers a period of twelve months or more as a substantial period of
time.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the
atatement of profit and loge in the period in which they are incurred.
Retirement benefit, medical costs and termination benefits

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Company pavs
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Company has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further conitnibutions i the fund does not hold
gsufficient assets o pay all empioyees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current and prior periods. Pavments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognized as an expense when emplovees have rendered
service entitling them 1o the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement and medical plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projecied unit credit method, with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The present value of
the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of government bands. In countries where there
is a deep market in high-quality corporate bonds, the market rate on those bonds
that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
ohligation are used

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the chanpes
to the asset ceiling (if applicable)] and the return on plan assets [(exciuding
interest), ia reflected in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive meome in the period in which they occour. Remeasurement
recopnised in other comprehensive ncome s reflected immediately in retained
earnings and will not be reclassified to the statement of profit and loss. Past
aervice cosal is recopnised in the statement of profit and loss m the period of a
plan amendment, Net intorcat io calculated by applying the discount rate ot the
beginning of the period to the net defined benefit hability or assct. Defined benefit
costs are categorised as follows:
*  service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as

pains and lozses on curtallments and settlements);

net interest expense or income; and

remeasurement
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The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in the
statement of profit and loss in the line-item employee benefits expense

Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs,

When the benefit of a plan is improved, the portion of the increased benefit
relating to past service by employees is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent
that the benefits vest immediately, the expenses is recognized immediately in
statement of profit and loas,

The Company  provides retiring bepefits _in _the nature of provident fund,
supgrannuation and gratuity to its employees.

Obligations for contributio srovident fund and superannuation fund are
vlassified as defined contribution plans whereas retinng gratuity is classified

defined benefit plass.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity
can no longer withdraw the offer of the termination benefit and when the cntity
recoghises any related restructuring coste: In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based
on the number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months afier the end of the reporting period are discounted to their
prescnt value.

In the case where the acceptance of requests made by employees under the
scheme is at the sole discretion of the Company, the expenditure incurred on
acceptance of the request is charged off to the Statement of Profit and Loss in the
yvear i which it is incurred

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A Hability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages
and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid n
exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at

the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the
related gervice.

Other long-term employee benefits
Liabilitics recognised in respect of other long-term employee benelils are
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to
be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. The expected costs of these benefits are accrued over the period of
employment using the same pccounting methodology as used for defined benefit
retirement plans. Actuarial gains and lossea ariasing from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to the statement of
profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These obligations arc valued
annually by independent qualified actuaries,

The Company is providing benefits in the nature of compensated absences L its
emplovees which are classified as other long-term employee benefits
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Income Tax expense represents the sum of current tax and deferred tax

Current tax is provided al amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the

tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

reporting date and includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years. Subject to exceptions below, deferred tax is provided, using the balance

sheet method, on all tempomry differences al the reporting dale between the lax

bases of assets and Habilities and thelr carrving amounts for {inancial reporting

pUrposes:

¢ lax pavable on the [uture remittance of the past earnings of subsidiaries where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
15 probable Lhat the ternporary differences will not reverse in the [oresceable
future; and

s deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than
not that they will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are mensured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply to the yvear when the asset is realized or the hability 15 settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. Tax relating to itema recognized directly in other comprebiensive
income is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and not in the
statement of profit or loss,

The carrving amount of deferted tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its
current tax assets and habilitics on a net basis

Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet method, on all temporary
differences at the reporting date between the tax hases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred Tax Assets include Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance
with the tax laws In India, which likely to give future economic benefits in the
form of set off against future income tax hability. MAT is recognized as deferred
tax msset in the balance sheel when the ussel can be measured rellably and it is
probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be
realized,

The carryimg amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
is adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part af the asset to be recovered.

Deferred 1ax assets and liabilities are offset when they relaie o income taves
levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its
current tax assets and labilities on a net basis.

Ind AS 12 Appendix €. Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30,
2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C.
Uncertainty over Income Tax treatments which 1s to be applied while performing
the determination of taxable profit (or loss), tax bases, unused tax losscs, unuscd
tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over Income Tax treatments
under Ind AS 12. According to the Appendix, companies need to determine the
prebability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of
tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax
filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the
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expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit {tax loss), tax
bases, unused tax lpsaes, unused tax credits and tax rates.

The standard permits two possible methods of transition - {i) Full retrospective
approach — Under this approach, Appendix C will be applied retrospectively to
each prior reporting period presented in accordance with Ind AS 8 — Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight
and (i) Retrospectively with cumulative effect of initally applying Appendix C
recognized by adjusting equity on initial application, without adjusting
comparatives.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS Appendix C is annual period beginning
on or after April 1, 2019, The company has adopted the standard on April 1,
2019 without adjusting comparatives. The effect on adoption of Ind A5 12
Appendix € would be in Material in the standalone financial statements.
Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes: On March 30, 2019, Minnitry of
Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS 12, ‘Income
Taxes', in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize the income tax
consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions
or events,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or
after April 1, 2019. The company is currently evaluating the effect of this
amendment on the standalone financial statements.

Amendments to Ind AS 19 : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee benefits’, in connection with
accounting lor plan amendments, curtailments and settlements,

The amendments require an entity :

* To use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net
interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement; and

* To recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss
on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not
previously recognised because of the impact of asset ceiling,

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or
after April 1, 2019, The company does not have any impact on account of this
amendment,

Revenue is recognised upon transler of control of promised goods or services
customers in &an amount that reflects the consideration the company expects to
receive in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue from operation includes
Rovalty, DMF, EMF and NMET.

The Company derives revenue principally from sale of imestone and dolomite.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control is
tranaferred to the customer. Revenue from sale of goods is measured baged on
the transaction price, which is the considération, adjusted for discounts and
pricing incentives, if any, aa specified in the contracts with the customer. (51 s
not received by the company for its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on
sale on behalf of the Government. Accordingly, it is excluded from Revenue.
Provisions for estimated losses on incomplete contracts are recorded in the
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period in which such losses become probable based on the current contract cost
eslimates

Other Income - Material Accounting Policy

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income, dividend income, gain/
loss on investments. Interest Income is recognised as it accrues in the
statement of profit and loss using the effective interest method

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive dividend is established.
Interest income from & financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of incorne can be
measured reliably. Interest income is acerued on time basis, by reference to the
principal owtstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which s the
rate that exactly discounts estimater] future cash recelpts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on nitial
recognition,

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are descnibed in note 2, the
management of the Company is required to make judgementis, eslimates and assumjtions
nbout the carrving amounts of assets and linbilities that are not readily apparent {rom other
sources. The estimates and nssocmated assumptions are based on historical experience and
other {actors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions fo
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both eurrent and future perords

5.1 Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

The following ave the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note 3.2
below), that the management have made in the process of applyving the Company's accounting
policies and that have the most Malenal ¢ffect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements,

5.1.1 Financial assets at amortized cost:

The management has reviewed the Company's financial assets at amortised cost in the light of
its business model and have confirmed the Company's positive Intention and ability to hold

theae financial asaeta o collect contractual cash flows. The carryving amount of these inancial
assets as on 31.03,2022 is Rs. 1855.34 Lac (March 31, 2021: Rs. 2232.79 Lac). Details of thesc

gEsSels are gel oul in nowe 37.

5.1.2 Qre reserve and mineral resource cstimates

The Company estimates and reports ore reserves under the principles contained within the
guidelines issued by the Indian Bureau of Minea (IBM) = including:
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* Future production estimates - which include proved and probable reserves, resource
estimates and committed expansions;

As the economic assumptions used may change and as additional geological information is
produced during the operation of a mine, estimates of reserves may change. Such changes may
impact the Company’s reported financial position and results which include:
e The carrving value of exploration and evaluation assets, mine properties. property and plant
and equipment may be aflfecied due w changes in estimeated future cash Nows,
Depreciation and amortisation charges in profit or loss may change where such charges are
determined using the units of production method, or where the useful life of the related
assets change,
Capitalised stripping costs recognised in the Balance Sheet or charged to Staternent of Profit
or Loss may change due to changes in siripping ratios;
Provisiens for rehabilitation and environmental provisions may change - where changes (o
the reserve estimates affect expectations about whon such activities will occur and the
associated cost of these activiticsa; and
The recognition and cartying value of deferred income tax assets may change due to changes
m the judgments regarding the existence of such assets and in estimates of the likely
recovery of such assets.

5.1.3 Mine rehabilitation Cost includes Mines Progressive plan, Final Closure Plan and

Regrassing Coat.

The Company assesses its pune rehabilitation provision at cach reporting date. Material
eslimates and assumptions are made in determining the provision for mine rehabilitation as
there are numerous factors that will affect the ultimate amount payable. These factors include
estimates of the extent and costs of rehabilitation activities, technological changes, rezulatory
changes, cost increases as compared to the inflation rates and changes in discount rates.
These uncertainties may result in future actual expenditure differing from the amounts
currently provided. The provizion atl reporting date represents management's best estimate of
the present vadue of the future rehabilitation costs reguired,

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other keyv sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a Material risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
fmancal vear

2.2. 1 Useful fives of property, plant and equipment;

The Company reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment at the end of
earh reporting period

§.2.2 Fair value measurements and valuation processes:

Some of the Company's assety and labilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes,

In estimating the fair value of un usset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data
to the extent it is available. Where Level | inputs are not available, the Company engages third
party qualilied veluers Lo perform the valuation.

Ind-AS Material Accounting Policies
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

7- Other Intangible assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
An-at As at

Carrying amount of: 31.03.2024 31.0.;1.202

Computer softwares 0.00 0.00

Total Other intangible assets = 0.00

As at March 31, 2024 Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars Computer Total intangible assets

software

Gross Block as at April 1, 2022 3.49 3.49
Additions - -
Gross Block as at March 31,

Additions - -
Gross Block as at March 31,

Accumulated Impairment as at
April 1, 2022 3.49 3.49
Charge for the year 2022-23 = T
Accumulated Impairment as at
March 31, 2023 3.49 3.49
Charge for the year 2023-24 - -
Accumulated Impairment as at
March 31, 2024 3.49 3.49
Net block as at April 1, 2022 | 0.00 0.00
Net block as at March 31, 2023 0.00 0.00
Net block as at march 31, 2024 0.00 0.00




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

8 - Non- Current Investments (Rs. in Lakhs)
‘ As at As at
i 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Non-current
Unquoted investments
a) Investments in equity instruments (all fully paid)
Woodland Multispeciality Hospital Limited 0.05 0.05
(500 shares of Rs, 10 each fully paid up)
Sri Aurcbindra Sahayog Samity Limited*
(1 share of Rs. 100 each fully paid up)
Kalinga Cement Limited 0.12 0.12
(6000 shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up)
The Sijua (Iherriah) Electric Supply Co. Ltd.
(100 shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up)
Total - Investments in equity instruments (a) 0.17 0.17
* Amount is less than one lakh
Total - Other non-current investments (a) 0.17 0.17
**Category-wise other investments - as per Ind AS 109 As at As at
classification 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments 0.17 0.17
Agaregate amount of impairment in value of investments (0.17) {0.12)
Total - 0.05




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

9 - Other Non-current financial assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
articulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Non-current
{i) Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) £9.08 68.72
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(i) Balance with banks against guarantees and other
commitments
- Maturity more than 12 months 842.50 842.50
Net non-current other financial assets 911.58 911.22
9 - Other Current financial assets
it As at As at
articutars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Current
(a) Interest accrued on
(I) Term deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 279.17 243.18
(b) Others receivables
(i) (Unsecured, considered good)
Balance with bank agianst gurantees and other
©) commitments 3093 i
Net current other financial assets 310.10 274.11
9.1 The financial assets are carried at amortised cost.




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

10 Deferred tax assets (net)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
FRriiciiam 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Deferred Tax Assets (MAT Credit) 417.13 394.45
417.13 394.45
10 - Current Tax assets
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
(a) Advance Tax & Tax Deducted at 159.05 238.85
(b) Tax on OCL 0.00 60.01
Total current tax assets 159.05 298.86
Classification of current tax assets
As at As at
Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
SECLlI'Ed, considered goocl
Unsecured, considered good 159.05 238,85
Doubtful -
Total current tax assets 159.05 238.85

%gﬁ

#




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

11 Other Non-Current Assets

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particul As at As at
RIS 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
n- n

(a) Capital advances 48.86 75.39
(b) Balance with Govt. Authorities

(i) Customs, Excise, Sales Tax , Port Trusts etc. 0.00 57.96
(c) Prepaid lease payments

(i) Prepaid lease payments cost*
Gross non-current non-financial other assets 48.86 133.35
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful non financial assets
{a) Capital advances 48.37 48.37
Total Allowance for bad and doubtful non financial assets 48.37 48.37
Net non-current other assets 0.49 B4.98
Classification of non-current other assets:

As at As at

Particulars 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good 0.49 84.98
Doubtful 48.37 48.37
Gross non-current other assets 48.86 133.35

4




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

12 - Inventories

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

(a) Inventories (lower of cost and net relisable value)

{1} Cost

{2) Less: Provision
(b} Work-in-progress

{1) Cost

{2) Less: Provision
{c} Intermediaries

(1) Cost

(2) Less: Provision
(d} Finished goods

(1) Cost

{2} Less: Provision
{e) Coal and Fuel Qi

(1) Cost

(2) Less: Provision
(f) Stores and spares

{1) Cost

(2) Less: Impairment for Non - Moving Items

340.13
340,13

21.81
49.32

{27.51)

487.19
487.19

24,93
52.44
(27.51)

Total inventories

361.94

512.12

MNote:

12.1 The mode of valuation of inventories has been stated in note 4.7 of Accounting Policies




Tha @iera Stono Lime Company Limited

13 - Trade recuivables Rs. in %gl
o _ I(i_-l_ "
Particulars 31.03.202 | 31.03.202
il a
Current - Trade receivables
(a}) Unsecured, considened good
i) Ralated Party 265.06 | 373559
i) Others 645,63 552.94
b} Unsecured, considerad doulbitiul
i} Related Party
i) Dthars 48.32 34848
Trade Recelvable which have significant
(<) inerasa in eredit risk
{d) Cradit impaired
Less: Allowonce for doubtiul irade recalvables (expected credit logs 5
all n ) (132.02) {34.88)
Net trade recelvables "836.90 | 78A.51
Notos

13.1 Trade receivables

‘I'I'IIIllnﬂ"mhﬂﬂlﬂﬂ.ﬂrﬂﬂmcrﬂthuaﬂltnﬂﬂdllm Mo interest is charged even if the
mﬂmﬁmmmm‘ﬂﬁnmeniﬂtpuhd.ﬂnhadlrmmapmﬂnnhlh boaks
wmmilmmWﬂnmm-nuﬂnwtmmduﬂmm:uﬂtpﬂmﬂuﬂlm
certain customer from whom the amount is remalning uncollected for more than the credit pariod. Howewer, the
same has been providad for in the books.

The Company huu-damnuulwhmmﬂimmmmmilmmmemﬂ
o @ case to case basis, The Company makao provision for allowanees based on tha industrial credit loss
exprience and adjusted for forward loking information on a casa to case basis. The amount of provision that has
poen recognised ag allowance for doubtful trode recelvables {expacted eradit loss allowance) ropresents the
cases where the amount has hummduemmeﬂﬂupuﬂunndduhuudth-wsmuhu
bocome unseartain that whaen the amount will be collected.

13.2 Trode Receivablas ageing Schadulo
outstanding for following perbod from due date of paymeant
| As@at31.03.3024 | Wit 1T __[Rs in Lakhs) |
Particulars Credit hen g |% OS5 year| 2-3 year More then Tﬂ:l-ﬂ
. 1 year e ¥eaT| 3 years

EM:':H"G'M'“ Recuivabies - . | 700,09 | o3sse9| 3115 | 9232 9665 | 95001

Uridisputed Trade Recaivables —
wihich hawe significant increase In = - = - = - -
credit risk

Undisputed Trade Recalvables —
cradit impaired

Disputed Trade Hoceivables—
considered good

‘Disputed Trade Recelvablas - which
have significant increasa in credit - = - - - - -
ks

pisputed Trade Receivables - cradit
impaired

Jlm Provision - - 11.62 | 3ILI1E 50.02 3822 132,02

Balance - 70010 27.07 - 42.30 57.43 826.99

Ag pt 31.03.2033 [Re. In Lakhe)

& months = More then
1 1-2year| -3 y0ar | Ty our Total

Particulars Crdit thon &
Pariod months

- 51249 18302 - 13.02 34.88 623411

Undisputed Trado Recoivables -
Considered Good
undisputed Trade Receivables -

which have significant incraase In - - . - - - "
Undisputed Trads Recelvables - . . . [ 5 5 z
credit impaired

Disputad Trads Rocsvables=
Disputed Trade Receivables = which |
have significant increase in cedit - - - - - - -
Lil1

Disputed Trade Recaivabios = credit
impained

Less: Provision - - - - - 34.88 34.88

Ralance = 512.4% 163,02 - 13.02 * 788.53




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

14 - Cash and cash equivalents

{Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulurs 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
{a) Cash on hand 0.11 0.36
(b) Balances with schedule banks 360.22 50.96
Total cash and cash equivalents 360.33 91.32




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

15 Other Current Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
PEtieuine 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Current
(i) Advances other than capital advances
(a) Advances to related parties 45.00 45.00
(b) Advances to Vendor 0.01 0.00
(c) Advance to Others 98.54 0.00
(ii) Others
(a) Prepaid expenses 0.00 13.80
(b) Input Tax Credit (GST) 1461.57 1426.10
(c) Royalty on Minerals 184.16 0.00
(d) Others - 0.39
Total other current assets 1789.28 1485.29

Note: Royalty on mineralof Rs.184.16 Lacs represents the balance of the excess
payments being the differential amount of Royalty deposited between the permission
quantity applied for and actual quantity despatched over a period of years .Whcle of the

C—

above amount is either refundable oradjustable asgainst future Royalty payments.




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

16 - Assets classified held for sale (Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
R 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Property, plant and equipment -
Carrying amount 10.99 10.99
Less: Provision for impalrment for assets held for sale (10.99) (10.99)

Net assets held for sale

NOTE: The Company intends to dispose of the property, plant and equipment no
longer to be utilised in the next 12 months. The Company does not expect any value
on sale, hence the provision has been made for the carrying amount of the asset.

%\ :




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

for ane vote per share,

17 - Share capital (As. in Lakhs)
As at
Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2013
Authorised Share Capital:
B8,75,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each 8,750.00 8,750.00
TOTAL 8,750.00 8,750.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share
|Capital:
§,72,86,252 Equlty Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid 8,728.63 B,728.63
TOTAL 8,728.63 8,728.63 |

17.1 The Company has only one class of equity shares having par viue of Re. 10/- each. Each shareholder is eligible

17.2 A reconcilistion of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the

reporting period.

uity Shares
D—— Hgmh:: Face Value (Rs.)
Shares outstanding as at 01.04.2022 87,286,252 | Rs. 10/-
Issue of Sharcs - -
Shares outstanding as at 31.03.2023 87,286,252 | Rs. 10/-
Issue of Shares =
Shares outstanding as at 31,03.2024 87,286,252 | Rs. 10/~

17.3 Shares in the Company held by its holding company or its ultimate holding company including
|shares held by subsidiaries or assoclates of the holding company or ultimate holding company.

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
jdncanna No. of shares| % of holding| No. of shares | % of halding of
held of shares held shares
1. Eastern Investments Limited (holding 43,651,855 50.01%| 43,651,855 50.01%
comgany)
2, et riva S Tgaay imted (diimate 162,927 0.21% 182,927 0.21%
halding company)

17.4 Shares in the Company held by each sharcholder holding more than 5 percent shares specifying the

number of shares held,
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Particulare No. of sharea| % of holding | No. of shares | % of holding of
hald of shares held shares
1, Eastern Investments Limited 43,651 BES 50.01% 43,651,855 50.01%
2, The President of India 43,336,648 49.65%: 43,336,648 A5 .65%
86,968,503 86,988,503
17.5
Details of Shareholding of Promoters
fBhares held by promoter at the cnd of the year
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
a4 of Totel %ol | % changes
5L Ko Promoter Name Mo of Shares No of Sharcs| Total | duringthe
Shares
Shuren year
EASTERN INVESTMENTS LIMITED
i (Holding Company) AIL5 1855 50,01 43651865 | 50.m NA
] PRESIDENT OF INDIA 13336548 49,65 93336648 | 49,65 NA
RINLRashimya Ispat Nigam Lid.
3 (Uienate Holding 182927 021 182927 n.21 NA
R BIRDE JUTE & EXPORTS LTD. 47710 005 47710 0.05 HNA

o




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

18 - Other equity

(Rs. in Lakhs)

[18.1 Capital Reserve

Particulars Az at 31.03.2024| A=z at 31.03.2023
Capital reserve 2.92 1.92
Retained earnings (21,676.14) {21 85279}
Total (21,673.22) (21,849.87)

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03,.Z023
Balance at the beginning of the year/period 2.92 292
Movements - L
Balance at the end of the year/period 1.92 21.92

18.2 Retained Earnings

Particulars

As at 31.08.2024

Asx at 31.03.2023

Balance at the beginning of the year/period

|Changes In accounting policy or prior period d
Restated balance at the beginning of the

currant reporting period
Profit attributable to owners of the Company

1Dther comprehensive income arising from

remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
net of income tax

FV loss adjustment
Provigien for dividands on aquity shares

Related provision for income-tax on Dividend

Transfor to Caneral Resarve

(21,852.79) (22,841.19)

(21,852.79) (22,841.19)

229.13 1173.52
(52.48)

{185.12)

(21,676.14) (21,852.79)

o

W




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

19 Non-Current borrowings | (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at
03.2023
Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.0
Term loans from related parties
(i) Unsecured - at amortised Cost -
Total non-current borrowings - =

Current borrowings

As at
Particulars 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Current maturities of Term loans borrowings from
related parties
(1) Unsecured - at amortised Cost 1500,00 1,500.00
Total current borrowings 1,500.00 1,500.00

Notes:
19.1 Terms of re-payment of term loan from Eastern Investments Ltd (EIL):

{a) Principal amount of Rs. 1,375 lacs disbursed till 31.03.2013 is repayable in 120
equal monthly installments starting from April 2013 and Principal amount of Rs.
125 lacs disbursed after 31.03.2013 is repayable Iin 120 equal monthly instalments

starting next month from the month of disbursement.

{b) As per the terms, Simple interest on the term loan is payable on monthly basis
at RBI interest rate prevailing on the date of disbursement for the year of
disbursement and for subsequent years at the prevailing RBI interest rate.

19.2 pye to acute financlal crisis, the Company could not pay any monthly instaliment
towards repayment of principal since 2014. Aggregate amount of principal and
interest falling due for payment but remaining unpaid as at the year ended
31.03.2024 is Rs. 1500 lacs and Rs. 1053.70 lacs respectively.

19.3 Current maturities of tong~te urruwings has been reported as a part of short

term borrowings 2ol & S




20 - Provisions

The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

Non-Current Provisions

(Rs. in Lakhs)

As at As at
e 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
(@) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefits obligations
- Retiring gratuity 760.33 874.46
- Compensated absences 127.21 174.15
Total non-current provisions 887.54 1,048.61
Current Provisions
As at As at
Farticutars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Other Long-term employee benefits
- Retiring gratuity 781.19 1863.31
- Compensated absences 134.45 107.61
(b) Other provisions
(1) Provision for Taxation 38.83 210.93
(2) Provision for CSR Expenditure 20.86 3.00
(3) Provision for advance given OMDC 18.94 0.00
Total current provisions 994.27 2184.85

Particulars

20.1 Movement in the balances of Other provision during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Additional provision reocgnised/(Reduction arising from payment/reversal)

Balance as at March' 31, 2024

(i) Provision for :

year.

a) Gratuity: Gratuity Payable on separation @ 15 days’ pay for each completed year
of service to eligible employees wha has render continuous service of 5 years or
more, Maximum amount in the case of separation Is Rs.20.00 Lac for each Employee.
Provision on account of gratuity Is being made as per the actuarial valuation.

b) Leave Encashment payable on separation to eligible employees who have
accumulated earned and half pay leave totaling up to 300 days. Encashment of
accumulated earned leave for executives is allowed up to 30 days once in a financial

e) Acerued Gratuity of retired/leftover employees amounting Rs, 1144,20 Lacs
have been Inluded in the Actuarial Report. Provision of Current Retiring Gratulty
shown above is excluded of Rs.1144,20 Lacs.




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

21 - Trade Payables (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Purticyians 31.03.2024 |31.032.2023
Current - Trade Payablas
{1} Total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Soe 16.72 0.00
note below) s :
{2) Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises
(a) Trade payables for supplies and services 1504.47 366.00
() Others
Total current Trade Payables 1,541.19 366.00

Trade Payables ageing Schedule

As at 31.03.2024

Qutstanding for following period from due date of payment

Particulars Not Dus Lesiaua\:n 1 13 veiaF 2:3 yeor Hur:e::n 3 Total
MSME = 30.64 0.39 0,92 4.77 356.72
Others = 536.21 6.79 7.22 954,25 1504.47
Disputed dues - MSME . . - - - =
Disputed dues - Others - - - - = &

As at 31.03.2023
Particulars Lese than 1 Mare then 3
Mot Due year 1-2 year 2-3 yaar vears Total

MSME . . - - *
Others _ - 32.68 18.75 0.87 313.70 366.00
Disputed dues - MSME
Disputed dues - Others

Notes:

prioroty basis on available fund.

policy in place to ensure thal all payables are paid as per agreed terms.

21.1 The dues payable to Mlcro and Small Enterprises as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 which have been detérmined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information available with the Company, The sald payment will be made on

21.2 The credit period on purchases vanes from contract to contract based on the terms of payment in
each contract. In none of the contract Interest g charged. The company has financial risk managament

V. -

{ﬁ

o2



The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

22 - Other Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particul As at As at
iy s e 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Current
(a) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 1053.69 055.93
(b) Security deposits from contractors 1175.34 1229.49
(¢) Other employee related payables 3399.60 2307.09
(d) Other payables 1264.64 2217.40
Total current other financial liabilities 6893.27 6709.91

Note: Other Employee related payables includes the arrears of Rs.1554.04 Lacs
for gratuity of retired employees. Provision for interest on gratuity has been
made. It also includes the arrear salaries of Rs.1231.06 Lacs , however
management anticipates no interest is payable on the arrears salaries.




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

23 - Other liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
As at As at
Favtioulers 31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Current
(i) Advances received from customers 3627.14 3824.88
(ii) Statutory dues
(a) Income Tax (TDS) 23.26 30.05
(b} Service Tax 5.37 5.37
(c) GST 38.07 38.62
(d) Provident fund 34.63 28.01
(e) Others 4.44 1.55
(F) Mining Related payable 3131.13 2811.10
Total current other liabilities 6864.04 6739.58

4




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

24 - Income from operations

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
(a) Sale of products
i) Dolomite and limestone B466.97 8619.17
Total Income from operations 8466.97 8619.17
24.1 Break up of Sale of products
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Limestone 1271.33 513.72
Colomite 7,195.64 B,105.45
8,466.97 8,619.17
For the year |For the year
Break up of Sales Value ended ended
31.,03,2024 |31.03.2023
Product Value 7315.01 7402.41
Royalty 849.81 840.46
DMF 254,25 251,92
EMF 32.31 110.96
NMET 4.07 1.5
USER FEE 11.52 11,92
8466.97 8619.17

4




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

25 - Other Income (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
[a) Interest income from
i) Bank depoaits 39.99 S0.78
ii) Security deposits 4.18 247
(b) Miscellancous income 20.16 0.26
Total other income 64.33 53.51




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

26 Changes in Inventories of finished goods

(Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods 340.13 487.19
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 487.19 343.25
Total 147.06 (143.94)

87




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

27 Contractual Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Contract Labour & Others 59.98 58.50
(b) Crushing Charges 1809.24 1987.21
(c) Development Work 150.40 178.84
(d) Development Plantation 0.89 2.16
(e) Loading & Transporting 464.47 581.24
(f) Raising 227.73 265.04
(g) Reject Boulder ( Raising) 34.46 31.67
(h) Dewatering 0.00 13.55
Total 2747.17 3118.21
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

28 Royalty (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(a) Royalty (Mines) 1140.44 1204.84
(b) Royalty(User Fee) 11.52 11.92
(c ) Unrealised Royalty 36.14 -
Total royalty expenses 1188.10 1216.76




The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

29 - Employee benefit expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
{a) Salaries and wages, including bonus 1347.13 1411.26
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(1) Provident fund 209.00 121,90
{2) Superannuation Fund 15.11 19.83
(3) Gratuity Including Interest 318.36 198.69
(4) Deposit Linked Insurance Scheme 3.45 3.91
(c) Staff welfare expenses 71.93 135.01
Total employee benefit enses 1964.98 1890.60
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

30 - Finance costs (Rs. in Lakhs)
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(a) Interest expense on
loans

97.77 83.45

Total finance costs

97.77 B3.45
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

31 - Depreciation and amortisation

(Rs. in Lakhs)

expenses
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 | 31.03.2023
Depreciation of plant, property and
equipment 38.89 37.79
Amortisation of intangible assets = -
Total depreciation and amortisation 38.89 37.79
Z
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

32 - Other expenses

{Rs. in Lakhs)

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
(i) Stores and spares consumed 8.01 4.02
(i)  Repairs to buildings 32.26 33.60
(i)  Repairs te machinery 20.26 39.03
(iv) Repairs to others 5.B8 0.20
{(v) Consumption of fuel oil 17.39 24.40
{vl} Purchase of power 272.41 254.88
{vii) Rent expenses 10.75 7.96
(vili} Rates and taxes .39 5.48
(Ix) Insurance charges 1.21 0.91
(%) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses (Refer no. 32.1) 1.75 2.00
{xi) Advertisement expenses 293 0.57
(xil) Travelling expenses 17.35 19.51
(x1l1) Printing and stationery expenses 3.88 6.88
(xlv) Communication expenses 2.49 2.94
(xv) Railway siding chargec 7.94 4.67
xvl) Doubtful Debts {Provision) 97.14 =
(xwli) Hire charges 15.61 7.35
(xvili} Professional expences 28.39 17.49
(xix) Interest on statutory liabilities 0.00 79.93
(xx) Provision for Liquidated damages 0.00 332,72
(xxi) I[nterest on Trade Advance 347.51 -
{xxll) Provision for Mines Closures Plan 112.15 336.44
{xxiii) Provision for Interest on Contractual Services 169.91 41.54
(xxiv) Provision for CSR Expenditure 17.86 3.00
{xxv) Provision for advance to OMDC A/c. 13.94 -
{xxvl) Progressive Mines Clouser Plan 140.74 -
(x#vii) Regrassing 56.07
{xxviil} Sales Tax Refund written off 37.96 =
{xxix} TDS Written off 51.94 -
(xxx) Interest on contractual dues 70.86
{xxxi) Interest on IB Valley Transport Coprn 73.87 -
(xxxii) Interest on Parishram Industrial Co operative Society 69.98
(xxxiii) Reversal of Input GST Credit 245,55 -
(ocdiv) Other general expenses 131.3 37.03
Total other expenses zlld.d_ 1262.57
For the Year For the Year
Particulare ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03,2023
32.1 Details of Auditor's remuneration for the year ended:
Auditors remuneration
{1} For Statutory Audit 1.25 1.25
(i) For Certification & Other Service 0.50 0.75
1.75 2.00
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited

33 - Earnings per share

For the year For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
" Rs. per share| Rs. per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.26 1.34

33.1 Basic and diluted earnings per share

The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used In the calculation of basic

and diluted earnings per share are as follows:

For the year

For the year

Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Earnings used in the calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share 229.13 1,173.52
229.13 1,173.52
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023
lakhs lakhs
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for
the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share 872.86 872.86

Note:

The EPS for the comparative period has been re-caiculated to rectify the arithmetic error and has

been restated accordingly.
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iﬁa Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
34 - Employee benefjt plan
34.1 Defined contribution plan

a) Provident fund: Company pays @ 12 % on Basic
The company has no further ohligation for future
monthly contributions remitted to Provident fund
statement of profit and loss in the periad in which tha related employees services ars rendered

34.2 pefined Benefit Plans

-

& IDA of salary for conttribution to Employess

Provident Fund.

provident fund benefits in respact of the employees other than its
autherities in accordance with the relevant statutes and charged to

b) Eamed Laave Benefits: Payable on separation for o maximum allocation of 300 days salary ( Defination of Salary s last

drawn Basic+IDA) . This is as per the guidelines issuad for the CPSE.

£} Half privilego Leave Banefits: Payable on separation far
Salary I last drawn Basic+IDA) . This is as per the quidelines issued for the CPSE,

These plans typically
risk and salary risk.

Adverse Salary Growth Experienco: Salary hikes that are
increase In Obligation at a rate that is highar than expected.

expose the group to actuarial risks such a3 actuarial risk; Investment risk, interest risi,

a maximum allocation of 300 days half salary { Defination of

langativity

banefits will cost more than expected. This can arise due to one of the following reasons:
higher than the assumed salary escalation will result into an

Variability in mortality rates: Ir sctual mortality rates are higher than assumad martallty rate assumption than the Gratulty

benefits will be paid aariar than expected. Since there is
cashflaw will lead to an actuarial loss or
rate.

ne condition of vesting en the death benefit, the acceleration of

gain depending on the relative values of the assumed salary growth and discount

Variability in withdrawal rates: If actual withdrawal rates are higher than assumed withdrawal rate assumption than the
Gratulty benefits will be pald eariier than expectud.The impact of this will depend on whether the benefits are vested ag at

there signation date.

ii. Investment risk: For funded plans that rely en insurers for managing the assets, the valua of
insurer may not be the fair value of instruments backing the liability. In such cases,
independent of the future discount
are significant changes In the discount rate during the Inter-valuation period.

Ik Liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations or those higher In hierarchy,

of benefits. If some of such employees rosign/rétire from the company there can bie strain on

iv. Market rish: Market risk is a collective term for risks that are relsted to the
markots. One sctuarlal assumption that has a material effecr is the discount rate.

argets certified by the

the present value of the assots Is
rate. This can result In wide fluctuations In the net llabllity or the funded status if there

accumulata significant leval
tho cashilows.

changes and fuctuations of the fMinancial
The discount rate reflects the time value

of menay, An increase in diccount rate lzads to decrease in Defined Benafit Obligation of the plan benefits and vice varss.

v. Legislative risk: Legisiative risk is the risk of increase in the plan labilities or reduction

in the plan assets due to change

In the legislation/ regulation. The government may amend the Payment of Gratuity Act thus requiring the companies to pay
higher banefits to the amployees. This will directly affect the present valua of the Defined Benaflt Obligation and the same

will have to be recognized Immediately in the year when any such amendment is affective,

No other post-retiremant banetits are provided to these employaes,
The mest recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the
out as at March 31, 2024 by M/s, Kapadia Global Actuaries i
present value of defined benefit obligation and the related
credit method,

Description of any amendment « Curtailment and sattlements

There are no changes in the benefit scheme since the last valution . There are no special event such
Improvements or curtaliments or settlements during the inter valuation pariod

prasent value of the defined benafit obligation were carried
a firm with fellow of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The

current service cost were measured wsing the projected unit

as benefit

The principal assumptions uzed for the purposes of the acturial valuations for Gratulty were as follows:

As at 31.03.2023

Particulars = As 3t 31.03.3024
Discount rate(s) 7.15%
Expacted rate(s) of salary increase 5.00%:

0.3% at vyounger
bges  reduclng to
0.2% at older ages

|

Withdrawal rave:

7.30%
E.0D%

0.3% at younger ages
reducing to 0.2% at
older ages

Amounts recognised In statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined

benefits plans are as Tollows;-

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

For the year ended

Particulars 31.03.2024

For the yoar ended
31.83.2023

Service cost
Current sarvice cost

Past service cost and (gain)/loss from
settamants

5501

G1.12




Net interest expensa

173.02

138.47

Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in profit or lass

218.93

199.59

Remeasurement on the net defined benefiy
liability:

Return on plan assets excluding amounts
included in interest Income

Actuarlnl (gains)/losses arlsing from
changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from
changes in financlal assumptions
Actuarial (gaing)/losses arising from
fuperience assumptions

5.40

67.9%

(53.04)

277.35

Components of defined benefit costs
recognised in other comprehensive income

Total

73.39
302.32

34.31
423.90

The current service cost and the nat intarest expense for the year are Included In the “"Employse benefits exponse® |ine

Itam in the statement of profit and loss.

The remeasuremant of the net defined lability Is Included In other comprehensive income.

The amount included in the balance sheat arising fram the entity's obligation In respect of its defined benefit plans is as

Tollows:

As at 31.03.2024

Presant value of unfunded defined benefit
abligation

Fair value of plan assets

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

Movements in the prasent value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

As at 31.03.2023

Present value of unfunded defined benefit
obligation

Fair value of plan assats

Net liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

Movements in the presant value of the defined benefit obligations are s foliows:

Closing defined benelit obligation as at
March 31, 2023

Currant sarvice cosl

Interest Cost

Remeasurement {pains )/ losceg;
Actuarial {Gains)/losses arising from
changes in demegraphic assumptions
Actuarial {Gaing)/losses arlsing fram
changes in financial assumptions
Past Service Cost

Actuarial (Gains)/ losses mrising Mrom
experience adjustments

Benafite paid by company

Closing defined benefit abligation as at
March 31, 2024

Closing defined benefit abligation as at
March 31, 2022

Current service cost

Interest Cost
Ramiaasuiyiment (gains)/lossas:
Actuarial [ Galns)/losses arising from
changes In demographic assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from

..*...,.,,...,_.“..m

] \‘N}?f

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

2,685.72

2,685.72

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

2,737.77

2,737.77

Amount Re. in Lakhs

2,737.77

5591
173.02

5.40

67.99

(354.37)

2,685.71

Amount Rz, in Lakhs

2,439.22

61.12
138.47

(53.04)




Past Service Cost

Actuarlal (Gains)/losses arising from 277.35
experianes adjustments

Benefits pald by company (125.34)
Closing defined benefit obligation as at

March 31, 2023 2,737.78

Mavements In the fair value of the plan asscts are as follows:

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Opening value of plan assets

Interest income

Raturn on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest expensa)
Contribution from the emplayer

or the year en Faor the year ended
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Benefits paid - -
Expenses deducted from the Fund - -
Clesing value lan nesote - -

The fair value of the plan assets for India and overseas plan at the and of tha reparting parlod for gach category, are as

Fair value of plan assets as at

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.01.2023

Total - -
Expected Future Cashflows (Undiscountad)
Particulars Rs %%

| Year 1 Cashflow 19,25,38,955 41,90%

Year 2 Cashflow 1,74,12,423 9.30%:

Year 3 Cashflow 2,20,79,851 11.90%

Year 4 Cashfiow 2,00,59,585|  11.30%

Year 5 Cashfiow 1,27,05,2558 6600

Year 6 to Year 10 Cashflow 2,26,81,781 12.20%

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the acturial valuations for Earned Leave Benafits were as follows:
‘;_\_ ety e O 0 TR

Withdrawal rato:

Particulars Ag at 31.“3.!@!4 As ot 31.03.2023
Discount rate(e) 7.15% 7.30%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 4.50% 4.50%

0.3% at younger 0.3% at younger ages
ages raducing to|reducing to 0.2% at

0.2% at older ages

Amaunts recognised in statement of profit and lass in respect of these defined benafits plans are as follows:-

Amount Bs. In Lakhs

~ For the year ended| r year
Particulars 31.03.2024 31.03.2023
Service cost
Current service cost 18.11 20.64
Net Value of measurament on the obligatio
and plen assets (3.10) 34.60
Mt interest expense 17.97 12.31
Componants of defined benefit costs
recognised in profit or loss i 4 32.98 67.55
Remeasurement on the net defined banafit
liability:
Return on plan assotc excluding amounts
included In interest income
Actuarial (gaing)/loeses arlsing fram
changes in demographic assumptions - -
Actuarial (gains)/losses arieing from
changes in finaneial mssumptions 0.79 (9.58)
Actuarial (gains)/losses arising from
experience atcumptions [{3.90) 44,18
Companents of defined benefit costs
recegnised in other comprehensive income (3.11) 34.680
Tolal 29.87 102,15




Thae current service cost and
item in the statement of profit and loss,

Th
The amount included In the
follows:

the net Interest expense for the year are included in the

& remeasuremant of the net defined liabllity is included In other comprehensive income,
balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as

"Employee benefits expense” line

As at 31.03.2024

Present value of unfunded defined benefit
ohligation

Fair value of plan assets

Mat llabllity arising from defined benefit
abligation

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

247.47

247 .47

Movemants in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as Tollowis:

As at 31.03.2023

Present value of funded defined banefit
obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Met liabllity arising from defined benefit
obligation

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

264.51

264.51

Movemants in the present vaiue of the defined bansfit obligations are as foliows:

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Closing defined benefit obligation as at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023 264.51
Current service cost 18.11
Intarest Cost 17.97
Remeasurement (gains)/losses;

Actuarial (Gains)/logses arlsing from

changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising fram

changes in financial assumptions .79
Past Service Cost

Actuarial (Galns)/ losses arising fram (3.90)
experisnoe assumpbions

|Benafits paid by an entity {50.03)
Closing defined benefit obligation as at 247.46

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Closing defined benefit obligation as at

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 o]
Current service cost 20.64
Interest Cost 12.31
Remessurement (gains)/losses:

Actuarial (Galns)/losses arising from

changes in demographic agsumptions

Actuarial {Galng)/losses arising from

changes in financial assumptions (9.58)
Past Service Cost

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from 44,18
experience assumptions

Benefits pald by an entity (30.82)
Clasing defined benefic obligation as at 264,51

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

"

21.03:2024

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

| Farthe Year ende
51.03.2023

Dpening value of plan assets
Interest Income

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest expense )

Contribution from the employer
Benefits pald
Expenses deducted from the Fund

Closing value of plan assets

The fair value of the pian asgesei




Fair value of plan asscls as at

As at 31.03,2024 As at31.03.2023 |
| Total . -
Expected Future Cashflows {Undiscounted)
Particulars R= )

Year 1 Cashfiow 1,32,63,254 56.00%

Year 2 Cashiiow 21,095,180 9.30%%

Year 3 Mow 38,04,744 16.10%

Year 4 Cashilow 32,75,036 13.80%

Year 5 Cashflow 12.75,995 5.40%,

Yoar 6 to Yenr 10 Cashfiow 35,41,786 15.00%

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the lr.lurial.;rnlulﬂms for Half Privilege Leave Benefits were as

follows:
Particulars As at 31,03.2024  [Asat 31.03.30%3 |
Discount rate(s) 7.15% 7300,
Expected rate(s) of salary Increase 5.00% 5.00%:
0.3%  at younger 0.3% at younger ages
S0es  reducing to reducing to 0.2% at
Withdrawal rate: 0.2% at middie ages middle ages and 0.19%
and 0.1% at older| IO :9-! .
agas
Amounts recognised in statement of prafit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:-
: Amount s, in Lakhs
|Particulars = 5
Service cost
Current service cost 2.59 3.89
Net Value of measurement on the obligatio
and plan assets (6.72) (14.73)
Net Interest axpanse 1.07 1.44
Componants of defined benefit costs
recognised in profit or lnss {3.08) (2.40)
Remeasurement on the net defined banefit
liability:
Return on plan assets excluding amounts
Included in interest income
Actuarial {gaing)/losses arising from
changes in demographic assumptions - =
Actuailal (gaIns)/losses arising from
changes in financlal assumptions 0.09 (1.09)
Actuarial {gains)/losses arising from
experience assumptions (6.80) (13.64)
Components of defined benafit costs
recognisad in other comprehensive lncome (6.71) (14.73)
Tolal (8.77) [:H.I_:!l

Item In the statement of profit and loss.

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the "Employes bonefits expansa” line

Tha remeasurement of the net defined liability Is included in other comprehensive Incame,
The ameount included in the balance sheat arising from the entity's ebligation in respect of its defined bonefit plans is as

As al 31.03.2024

Present value of unfunded defined banafit
whbligation

Fair value of plan aseots

Amount RS, in Lakhs

14.19

Met liabillity arising from defined benaFit
obligation

14.19

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

As at 31.03.2023

Frasent value of unfunded defined banafit
obligation

Falr value of plan assets

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

17.24




MNet liability arising from defined benefit
obligation

17.24

Movements in the present value of the defined bansfit obligations are ag follows:

Amaunt Rs, in Lakhs

Cloging defined benefit obligation as at

March 31, 2024

17.24
March 31, 2023

Current service cost 2.59
Interest Cost 1.07
Remeasurament (gaing)/losses:

Actuarial [Gains)/losses arising from

changes in demaographic assumptions

Actuarial [ Galns)/losses arising from

changes in financial assumptions 0.09
Past Service Cost

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from (6.80)
experience adjustments ’
Banefits pald =
Ciosing defined benefit sbligation as at 14.20

Amgunt Rs. in Lakhs

Clasing defined benefit obligation as ot

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022 20.64
Current service cost 3.89
interest Cost 1.44
Remeasuremant (gains)/logses;

Actuarial {Gains)/losses ariging frem

changes In demographle assumptions

Actuarial (Galns)/lasses arlslng from

changes in financial assumptions {1.09)
Fast Service Cost

Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from (13.64)
experience adjustments

Benalits paid &
Closing defined benefit obligation as at 17.38

Mavements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

Amount Rs. in Lakhs

Opening value of plan assets

Interest Income

Raturn on plan assets {excluding amounts
included In net interest expensa)
Contribution from the employar

Benafits pald

Expenses deducted fram tha Fund

Clesing value of plan assets

The fair value of the plan ass=ts for India and eversceas plan at the end of the reperting periad for asch categery, are as

Falr value of plan accots as at

Total

As at 31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2022

Expected Future Cashflows ( Undiscounted)

___ Particulars Rs LTS
Year 1 Cashflow 181,563 7.50%
Year 2 Cashflow 1,222,605 5.00%
Year 3 Cashiiow 7,70,263] 31.70%
Year 4 Cashfow 3,9253} d 16.20%
Yoar § Cashflow 50,547 2.10%
|Year 6 to Year 10 Cashflow 5,51 678 23.80%




35.2 Sensitivity analysis

The Blsra Stone Lime Company Limited

35 - Sensitivity analysis of defined benefit plans
35.1 Signficant acturial essumption for determination of defined banefit plan are discount rate, expected
salary growth, attrition rate and moratlity rate. The sonsitivity analysis below have been based on

reaspnably possible changes of the respective assumptions eccuring at the end of the reporting period
while holding all other assumptions constant,

Amount Rs. In Lakhs

31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Gratuity Gratuity
Particulars r— o >
Impact on amount dues to changes in
Discount rate (-/+0.5%) 2667932 2704.15 2716.98 2759.31
% Change compared to base due to
sensitvity [+/(-)%] -0.66% 0.69% -0.76% 0.79%
Impact on amount due to change in
Salary growth (=/+0.5%) 270388 2668.64 2759.51 ZT16.71
% Change compared to base due to
senshtvity [+/({-}%)] 0.68% -, 6% 0.79%: -0.77%
Impact on amount due to change in
withdrawal rate (-/+10%) 2685.89 7685.55 2737.97 2731.57
L ﬂlﬁn—&i compared to base due to
sensitvity [+/(-)%) 0.01% -0.01% 0.01% -0.01%
Amount Ra. in Lakhs
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Pacilaitiene _ Earned Leave Benefits Earned Leave Benafits
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Impact on amount due to change in
Discount rate (-/+0.5%) 244.86 250,17 260.76 26E.4
% Change comparad to base dua to
sensitvity [+/(-Y%] -1.05% 1.09% -1.42% 1.47%
Impact on amount due to change in
Salary growth (-/+0.5%) 250.23 244,78 268,49 260.65
% Change comparad to base doe to
sensitvity [+/(-1%] 1.11% -1,09% 1.50% +1.46%
Impact on amount due to change in
withdrawal rate (-/+10%) 247.48 247.46 264.52 264.51
%% Change compared to base duo to
censitvity | +/{-}%] 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Amount Rs. in Lakhs
31-Mar-24 ~ 31-Mar-23
Particul Half Privilege Leave Benafits] Half Privilege Leave Renafits
e Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Impact on amount due to change In
Discount rate (-/+0.5%) 13.50 14.49 17.07| 17.79
% Change comparad to bace due to
sensitvity [+/(-)%] -2.04% 2.12% -1.02% 3.19%
Impact on amount due to change in
Salary growth (-/+0.5%) 14.49 13.89 17.8 17.06
% Change compared to base due to
Sensitvity [+/(-3%] 2.15% -2.09% 3.23% -1.07%
Impact on amount due to change in
withdrawal rate (-/+10%) 14.19 14.19 1742 17.42|
E™ ﬂ\angn rl;rrq:urnrl to hase due bo
sensitvity [+/(-)%] 0.00%: 0.00% 1.05% 1.04%

unchanged.

extent of the chanpe If any.

The sensitivity anatysis is parformed by varying a single parameier whiie keeping all the other parameters

Sensithvity analysin falls to focus an the Intererclationship between underlying parametare. Hanca, the
Jresulu may vary if twa or more variables are changed simul@neously.

Tha method used doas not indicate anything abaut the likelihood of change in any parameter and the

s e
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The Bisra Stone Lime Company Limited
Motas to the Financial Statements

36 - Related party Lransactions

A) Ultimate holding company
{a} Rashiriya lspat Nigam Limited [RINL)

B) Parant company
(a) Eastern Investmants Limited (EIL)

C) Fellow subsidiary company
(a) The Orissa Minarals Development Company Limited (OMDC)

D) Key Managarial Parsonnel (KMP):
(&) Shei D .K. Mohanty appointed as the Non executive Diirector in additional charge of M.D w.ef 19/05/2020 to 17.01.202%
{b) Shrl AK.Bagchl appointad as the Non exscutive Director in additional charge of M.O w.e.f 18/01/2024

(e} Shr & Patal Business Head (w.e.f, 01/05/2022)
{d) shrl P Sarkar Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01/05/2020)
(@) Shirl Pintu Plswal Company Secretary (w.ef. 11/11/2022)
36.1 Trading transactions
Dharing the year, the Company entered into the following trading transactions with related parties. Rs, In Lakhs
'_F:"' the | For the year ended
Related party Nature of transaction 4 31.03.2023
(a) Eastern Investments Limited Interest on Lean from EIL 97.77 a3.48
Sales of Dolomike 1959.00 1493.21
Trade advance adjusted during the year 249.28| 182,15
- RaghitPm SHORE MR Lamited Int on rade advance 347.51 33272
Salary of Deputed Employees 70.78| 86.38

Guest House given on rent by BSLC

() The Orissa Minerals Development Company 0.00 112.31
Limited Misc payment made during the year 4.05 0.00
Advance givan by BELT 26.06 45
(4] KMo's KMP's Salary,PF & other Fund and bab 16.50 14.83
The following hatances were quistanding at the end of the reparting peniod. Rs. In Lakhs
Amounts owed by /owed to
Related parties as at
For the VEA7 For the year anded
Ralated party Mature of transaction 31.03.2024 31.03.2013
|(a) Eastern Investments Limited mm‘gfm EIL and Interest Accrued| 5 gy gg 2,455.93
Trade Recerable 265.08 235.59
Trade Advance 3496,68 3745.97
(B} Rashtrya lspat Migam Limited Interest an Trade advance 347.51 332.72
Salary of Deputed Employees 157.16 o
I[c] The Orissa Mingrals Developmant Campany Comman Fapenses reimbursed to OMDC 1] Q
Limitad Reraivabla 26,06 45
) Key Managemant personniel x:lr\r:_lrmidm Find 1 Shel. Sanjey 14,08 12.8
(i
Shri, A K Shukla { Indepandent Director) -
26.2 Director's Remuneration | snting tees for atrending 8 Mestings 0.23 .13

16.3 Compensation of Key Management Parsonnal

i rernesalion of dircctors and sther members of kay managament perconned durng the year are a3 follows:

Year ended Year ended
Related party 31,05.2024  31.03.2023
SHort-term benefits 12.50 11.65
Post Employment benefits 4.00 3.18

Note: Compensation payabic to Shri Puspen Sarkar , CFO has been considered in the category of Salary of Dedputed Employess
fromm II.EHL.LtuIHHHN! holtling ecmphiy) and also the compensation of Shri Pintu Biswal , C5 hias not been considred in KM™s
remunaration of BSLC as his share of cost of employment & being bomed by the Castern Investments Compary Limited [EIL-

halding company) where he (s ariginally posted.
[ .
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Amount Rs. in Lakhs
: As at A= at
il i copimacibay 31.03.2024|  31.03.2023
37.1 Contingent liabilities
(I) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts
a) Sales Tax and Entry Tax Demand {Note a) 35.21 33.40
b) Stamp Duty Claim (Note b) 2,056.00 9.942.11
¢) Provident Fund Claims = 103.09
o) Peputy Director of Mines, Rourkela (Note d) 3,281.68 3,281.68
(IT) Contractual agencies B5.04 329.67
(111} Demand u/s 143 1a for AY 2020-21 {Appeal)} 146.86 101.29
(IV) Demand u/s 271 (1) (c) for AY 2015-16 (Appeal) 223.54 186.56
5,828.33 13,977.80
Notes:

37.1(1) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

37.1 (1) (a) Demand of Rs. 93.17 Lac (Rs.93.17 Lac) in respect of Odisha Sales Tax and Odisha Entry Tax,
challenged in appeal against which a sum of Rs.57.96 Lac (Rs.57.96 Lac) is deposited with the Sales Tax
Authonty .None of the cases have been settled and BSLC has also filed an application for refund of the deposited
amount of R5.57.96 Lacs with the Commercial Tax Department and which is under process,. No furthaer
communication is received towards balance of Rs.35.21 Lac {Rs.35.21 Lac) and hence it is considered as
contingent lability till such time it s setteled.

37.1 (1) (b) The Government had notified for increase of stamp duty for executing lease deeds @ 15% vide Indian
Stamps ( Odisha Amendement Act,20132 and Rules 2013). Accordingly the Govt. of Odisha demanded Rs 99.42
Crore for renewal of mining lease. BSLC has filed writ before Odisha High Court challenging the above said
notification and demmand vide WP { C ) case No 15307/2013 dated 08/07/2013 which is pending till date. The
Hon'ble High Court of Odisha has given " STAY" on the operation of above said notification which continues till
date. In the meantime BSLC has made registration of renewal of mining lease for two lease period i.e 2000-2020
B 2020-2040 by paying the stampduty @& 5% which s completed by the Registration department and duly
signed by the Collector, Sundergarh as per details given below: (1) Registration No 377 dated 30,3.2016 for the
lease period 01.03.2000 to 31.03.2020. The stamp duty paid Rs 6,14,28,672. If Govt ordered to pay the balance,
then BSLC has to pay the differential amount of Rs 12.28 Crore ( 15% -5%). (2) Registration No 592 dated
30.06.2020 for the period of 01.4.2020 to 31.03.2040. The stamp duty paid Rs 4,09,43,578, If The Govt will
arder to pay the balance amount, then BSLC has to pay the differential amount of Rs 8.28 Crore. So the total
differential amount will be Rs 2056.00 Lacs . 5o if the damand persist, then BSLC will pay maximum ta the
amount of Rs 2056.00 Lacs . So we may take the contigent liability of Rs 2056.00 Lacs instead of Rs 9942.00
Lacs,

37.1 (1) ( ¢) Providend Fund claim of Rs. 103.09 Lacs have been provided in the books and contingent liability
becomes NIL as on 31.03.2024.




37.1 (1) (d) )BSLE received a notice from Dy Director of Mines Rourkela vide letter no 143 dated 15.01.2015
towards excess mining of Rs 9,55,06,402 for the period from 2000-01 to 2010-11. Subsequently DDM Rourkela
revised the demand and Issued a show cause notice vide letter no 3014 dated 15.11.2017 for Rs 40,89,64,739/-
for the same period.

BSLC has stated in his reply that the reliance placed on judgment passed by the Hon'ble Supreme court dated
02.08.2017 In Commuon Cause Case for Issulng the present show cause notice with regard to alleged excess
production with respect to Mining plan and consent to operate is misplaced. It is submitted that the said
judgment did not deal with the issue of alleged excess production with respect to Mining plan and consent to
operate,

DDM raised the demand by considering the highest production from EC/MP/CTO from the period from 2000-01- to
2010-11. But as per Supreme Court order it will be calculated as per EC only. Hence BSLC revised the calculation
and replied the show cause notice vide letter on dated 15,12,2017 by calculating the excess production taking
anly EC quantity. Hence as per BSLC calculation the final demand amount arrived for Rs 8,07,96,051/- which has
already been provided in the Books of Account and the balance of Rs. 3281.68 Lacs (Rs.4089.65 Lacs -Rs.807.96
Lacs) has been kept in contingent liability. No demand/ correspondence in this regard have been communicated
to BSLC since then. In view of enhance EC permissible quantity since 2010-11, there is no scope of increase in
quantity by the company.

37.1 (11) (a) A work order was issued to the contractor on 24.10.2010 to provide security services round the
clock at the different places of mines . After termination of work order , the agency submitted the final bills of Rs.
B9.81 Lakhs. Rs. 21 Lakhs was paid to the agency leaving a pending amount of Rs. 68.81 Lakhs . The agency
filed & civil suit at Rourkrla . Liability of Rs. 24.88 Lakhs have been outstanding in the books apart from Security
deposit of Rs 13,28 Lakhs, As per the civil suit filed by the contractor , 7 % interest was claimed p,a till
realisation. The principal and interest , which comes to Rs, 84.17 Lakhs as on 31.03.2024. As the case is not yel
over , the amount has been parked in the contingent liability account.

37.1 (11 ) (b) An agency had given her vehicle an hire basis as per contract. CRPF had taken the vehidle for
patrolling and who did not release the vehicle on due date and kept for more days. BSLC did not pay the hired
amount for extra days. Agency went to court and the court gave the verdict in favour of the agency and asked to
pay Rs. 1.87 Lacs . B5LC challenged the order at High Court,Rourkela and deposited 1.00 Lac at Civil Court |
Rourkela , Balance amount of Rs,0.87 Lac is not paid ull date as the final decision has not yel come, so the
amount is kept as contingent lability,

37.1 (IIT) The Assessee has filed appeal against the order passed by the Assessing Officer mainly on three issues
for the AY 2020-21:

a) Income Tax department has passed rectification order u/s 154 ignoring unabsorbed loss of Rs 67,79,89,869
though it is mentioned in rectification order.

b) Provision for gratuity Rs 1,90,56,000 has been added twice in section 36 as well as in section 40A(7).

¢) Employees provident fund Rs 65, 83,837 has been added twice in section 36(1)(va) as well as in Section 438,
BSLEC challenged the above order and went for filing an appeal with the Income Tax Department. Next hearing
date has not yet been received by the company. An amount of R5.146.86 Lacs (101.28 Lacs as demand amount +
Rs. 45.58 Lacs as accrued Interest) as on 31.03,2024 has been appeared in the Income Tax Portal and hence
BSLC has kept the same amount as contingent liability till such time it is not finalised

37.1 (IV) The Assessee has filed appeal against order passed by the learned Assessing Officer mainly on two
Issues for the AY 2015-16:

a) Expenditure of Rs 1,35,00,000 has been debited under the head of Finance Cost which |s allowed under
scrutiny asessment u/s 143(3) but disallowed invoking section 263 of the Income Tax Act 1961 on the ground
that assessee did nol pay the amount.

b} Ex-gratia payment of Rs 5,50,00,000 has been debited in profit & loss account but the assessing officer was
invoking section 350DA of Income Tax Act 1961 and  allowed one-fifth in the assessment year 2015-16 and
the balance shall be deducted In equal instalments for each of the four immediately succeeding previous years,
IThat means no expenses has been disallowed in totality.

BSLC challenged the above order and went for filing an appeal with the Income Tax Department saying that:-
(i) liability for finance cost has to considered for deduction as it is charged to Profit & Loss account.

{1} deduction for the whole ex-gratia amount of Rs. 5.50 er has to be considered in the same year for deduction
as it was allowed in totality.

Next hearing date has not yet been recelved by the company. An amount of Rs.223.54 Lacs (186.23 Lacs as
demand amount + Bs, 37.31 Lacs as accrued Interest) as on 31.03.2024 has been appearad in the Income Tax
Portal and hence BSLC has kept the same amount as contingent liability till such time it |s not finalised.
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38. Additional Notes to Accounts
38,01 The Company owned freehold land of 104.925 Hectres and leasehold land of 466,196 Hectres (Govt. Land) in Block-X] at

birmitrapur as s
Public road, nH,

provided for Pro

Lacs is yet to be submitted, Liability of Ra, 56.07 Lacs has been recogniged towards regrassng of mined areas as per the dayse of
the supplimentary leasge dead,

urface right area which |s 571.121 Heetres and balance land of lease is 221.568 Hectres (Private tenianted lang,
Tempie etc) in Block -X1 a¢ Birmitrapur, Company has purchased 0,354 Hectres of land outside lnase hald area,

gessive Mine Clesure Pian for Rs5.1401.81 Lacs till March 2025 | The differontial additional amount of fis 56072

38.03 Supreme Court Judgement: The Hon'hle Supreme Court in its Constitution Banch of nine judges pronounced on July 25,
2024 and August 14; 2024 that the Mines and Minerals (Development and Regulation) Act, 1957 will ot denude the State
Gavernment of thair pover to levy tax on mineral rights and held that tax could be levied by the State Government an all
transactions made by mining companies and leasa haolders after Aprif 1, zoos,

However, the Company has 5o far not received any demands/notices from concermed State Gowt./ AgENCies in this regard, The
management has assessed the Implications of Hon'ble Supreme Court’s judgrments’ datad 25th July, 2024 and 14t Auaust, 2024
and belleves that the financial Impact, If devolved. on the eempany will not be material, Accordingly, no liability has been
recognized in the bogks af account.

pu
Production capacity from 0.96 MTPA to 5.26 MTPA, has roceived a total outlay plan of Rs 550.30 iac towards st of

rsuant to approval of Environmental Clearance from competent authority for enhancement of its annual

of site spacific wild |ife conservation, The Company, as a matter of prudence has made necessary provigion in the

Effectively princ

disbursement in

The Company

could not repay

38.05 Tha Company Is not reqular in repaying Principal amount of term Joan and interest therean ko [ie halding company Eastern

some period during 2011-13, As per the terms, Principal is repayable after one year from the resumption of mining operations in
120 equal manthly instaliments. Simple interest an the loan s payable on monthly basis at REI interest rate prevalling on the
date of disbursement for the Year of disbursement and thereafter for subsequent years at the prevailing RAI interest rate, The
loan was disbursed during 2012-13 on different dates aguregating to Rs.1375 Lac and alsp in April 2011 for Re 125 Lae.

Aparegate amount of principal falling due for Payment but remaining unpaid as at the year-end is Rs, 1500 Lac . The Company

has requested EIL to walve the loan amount as well as interest thereon in view of paor financial status of the ompany. The
amount in default towards rapayment of interest as at the year-end Is Re, 1053.70 Lac (Rs. 955.93 Lac). Confirmation of the
above balances of loan & Interest from ELL are alen abbained.

(EIL). The Compa Ny was sccommodated with the loan to tde over financial crisis due to clasure of the mines for

ipal repayment falls due from April 2013 In fespect disbursements during 2012-13 and from May 2013 for the
Apri| 2013,
1€ not in a position to Pay any monthly inetaliment Wwards repayment of Principal due to financial crisis,

interest since Jung 2013, The halding company EIL a Non Banking Financial Company declared the entirs Inan ag
Asset a5 on 30™ Sep 2014 and stopped recognizing interest income thereon from October 2014. The Company

38.06 As per Tripartite Memorandum of Settlement dateg 30th March 2009 with Recognised Workmen's Unign and Raglonal|
Labour Commissioner, the Wage revision Is due from 1st January 2013, However, in view of Office Memarandum of Department af
Public Entarprise Nes.2(11)/95-DPE(WC)-GL-1 dated 11th February 2004 and 2(70)/08-DPE(WC) dated 26th November 2008 the
Company is barred to Earry out wage revision due o recurring losses, negative networth and Inability to pay Incremental wages
out of its own sources, In view of the above, no provision on accaunt of pay revision hes been made in the accounts, The
possibility of wage revigion being remote, the same is ngt considersd even as Contingent Liabifity.

38.07 Input Ta

Fampany has obtalned |agal Opinion, accordingly the whole of ITC is either elegible for adjustment against outpur tax lisbility o
far refund in the ordimary eourse of bugineas,

® Credit of Rs. 1461.57 Lace [ Previous Year ks 142610 Lacs) is lying in the books a¢ other current assets . The

compliances ars

38.08 Company subjoct to sccreterlal audit and the management is responsible for varitus eompliances under the Companiac
Act and the rules framed there under and all the applicable SEBI compliances |, Any additional fees/penalties payable for non
Accounted for as and when PedUlred.




38.10 The management has represented that, to the best of (s knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any othar
person(s) or entity(ies), Including forelgn entities ("Intermeadiaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indiractly, lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified In any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, securlty or the llke on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

38.11 Tha management has represented that, to the bast of its knowlodge and belief, no funds have been received by the
Company from any person(s) or entity(les), Including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whethe
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in othar parsons ar antities
identified in any manmer whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficlaries”) or provide any guarantee,
sacurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Baneficiarles.

38,12 The Company has substantial carried forward losses and unabsarbed depreciation under the Income Tax Act, 1961 and
accordingly Deferred Taw Asset of Rs. 1668.20 Lacs (previous year Rs, 1674.03 Lac) has arisen as on 31st March 2024 and It
does not Include the effect of Grauity and Leave sncashment, Deferrad Tax Asseks an Depreclation for the year ended 31st March
1024 is hereunder: Depreciation as per Income Tax Act Rs, 73.82 Lacs and Dapreclation as per Company's Act Rs. 38,89 Lacs,
Timing Difference being Rs. (34.93) Lacs and Tax Impact on the seme Rs. (5.83) Lacs. Net Deferred Tax Assets as on 31.03.2024
Rs. 1668.20 Lacs, However, as per IND AS-12 and in consideration of prudence, the Defarred Tax Ascet has nob been recognised
in the financial statements owling to uncertainty of the availability of sufficient taxable income in future against which sueh
Deferred Tax Assets can be realised. Deferred Tax Assets referred to Accounts consist of MAT credit only.

38.13 The Company has made a prefit of Hs,232.65 Lacs before tax for the year ended 313t March'2024 and accumulated loss
s on J1st March'2024 is Rs.21673.23 Lacs which Is in excess of the entire Net Worth of the Company, The company has
assessed the geing concern assumption in praparing the financial statemants keeping in view the recent Improvements in the
performance of the company and expected positive prospects in future. The Management expects that positive cash flaw will be
generated from operations which would enable the company to continue to operate as a going concern during the ferthcoming 12
months period. Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on going concam basis,

38.14 Other additional regularatary informations are not applicable to the company.

38,135 SEGMENT- One common nomenclature used for both Dolomite and Limestons ® carbonate Rocks™This term reflects that
both minerals are composed primarily of carbonata minsrals with Limestone baing predominantly composed of calcite { calcium
carbonate) and Dolomite being composed of the mineral dolomite { calcium magendum carbonate), The company produces
Dolomite and Limestane which belongs to a single segmant product * carbonate Minerals” and sales it to the domestic market as
such segment reporting under Ind As is not required,

38.16 Provision for doubtful debtors: Trade Receivable shown at Note No 13,2 intlude amounts outstanding for tha more than
one year of Rs. 99.73 Lacs , however, no Provision has besn recognized in the books of account owing to the fact that the
company is taking measures by persusing with relevant parties to recover these amounts and most of these amounts are

Emeivablﬁ fram other PSLIs.
38.17 Ratio Analysis
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Disslosurs of any transactioos with struck off Coos e ies

Relationship with

Noame of Struck afl Namure of [fenyection with Struelk Balance the Struck off
Cimmpany T Clompmny Crutatanding | company, I aay, @
be disclosed

Inventnent in Securities Bl

Receivables MNil

Coyablcs ————— Ml

Share held by siuck off company Nil

Other Cuiistonding Balanes (Lo be

specified) il

|38.19 corporate social Responsibility

Carporate Sucial Resposibility

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, & campany, meeting the applicsbility threshold, needs o spend
at beast 2% of its average net profit for the immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social
responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and malmutrition, promoting
education, art and culture, healtheare, destilute care and rehabiitation, vwironment sustainability, disaster

eeliel, COVID-19 relief and rural developinent projects

(Bs. In Lakhs)
2 For the year ended | For the vear ended
SHe. st March2024 | 31at March 2023

(i) Amount requimd 1o be spent by the company 17 .66 el
{ii) Amoint of expenditure incurred 0.00 .00
(iii) Shortiall at the end of the year 178 3.00
(i) Total of previous year Shorifall 3.00 NA

Due to non-availability | Due to non-availability
(¥) Feason for shortfall of membirs inthe  [of members in the CSR

SR commiites commikhse

{(vi) Nature of CSR activities : NA NA
(viiy Details of Related Party transaction relating o C5R Nil Nil
Exponditine as per relovan aceounting standards

[3B30 Previous year's hgures have been re-grouped and re-arranged wherever necessary,

]

Accounts.

Signed pursuant to the provisions of Section 134 of the Cori

panies Act, 2013 In authentication of the Notes forming part of the

For Saha Ganguli & Associates
Chartered Accountants —
Firm Registration No.: 302191F &
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